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Name of Company

For every occasion
At Ceylon Cold Stores we are consistently developing new
products that cater for every occasion. So this means we have
to be on our toes, all the time. We take pride in the fact that our
portfolio knows no boundaries and is popular among the young,
old and in-between.
We are privileged to be part of our customers’ lives.
We also believe that the ability to reach different market
segments, and yet remain one of the most trusted brands in the
minds of our consumers, is nothing short of great. The goodness
and freshness of our products is not something that we need to
shout about. We let our products do the talking.
Ceylon Cold Stores is optimistic about the future and the endless
possibilities that come with it.
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GROUP		
		

2010
Rs. ’000

2009
Rs. ’000

%
Change

Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s
Rs.
No.of Times
%
%
%

15,322,957
14,363,301
541,864
420,151
228,874
10.60
4.45
3.56
8.68
14.27

13,595,168
12,690,168
460,951
268,345
139,614
6.46
2.39
2.22
5.73
11.53

13
13
18
57
64
64
86
1.34
2.95
2.74

Balance Sheet Highlights and Ratios
Total Assets
Total Debt
Net Debt
Total Shareholders’ Funds
Net Assets per Share
Debt / Equity
Debt / Total Assets

Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s
Rs.
%
%

6,486,438
975,174
847,171
2,637,341
122.10
36.98
0.15

6,490,223
1,487,438
1,449,755
2,494,881
115.50
59.62
0.16

0
-34
-41
11
6
-22
-0.01

Market / Shareholder Information
Market Price of Share as at 31st March
Market Capitalisation
Price Earnings Ratio (PER)
Dividends per Share (Gross) - Paid

Rs.
Rs.’000s
No.of Times
Rs.

172.00
3,715,200
16.23
4.00

69.50
1,501,200
10.76
1.00

147
147
51
300

Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s
Rs.’000s

3,918,242
1,322,754
1,799,633
709,441
86,414

3,591,041
1,443,915
1,465,773
659,739
21,614

9
-8
23
8
300

Earnings Highlights and Ratios
Gross Revenue
Net Revenue
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Earnings per Share
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Return on Capital Employed (ROCE)
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Retained within the Business
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Earnings Per Share Vs
Dividend Per Share

Net Revenue & Revenue
to Government
Rs. ‘000
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Our passion is to deliver
pleasure and nutrition
throughout people’s lives,
through exciting and
superior products, whenever
and wherever they choose
to eat and drink

Our
Vision
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Dear Stakeholder,

Performance Overview

The comprehensive victory of the Sri Lankan armed forces in

At a Company level

liberating the North and East of the country and developments



since then, with both presidential and parliamentary elections now

due to a volume increase as the Company did not take any

behind us, have positioned the country on the threshold of an
unprecedented era. Your Company is well positioned to reap the

Our Revenue grew by 6%. The Revenue increase was entirely
price increases during the year.



Despite the increase in certain key raw material costs, our

benefits of this environment given our recent investments in brand

cost saving initiatives at a manufacturing level enabled us to

and capacity enhancement.

marginally increase our Gross Profit margins.

“Your Company is well positioned to reap the benefits of this
environment given our recent investments in brand and capacity
enhancement.

”

Our financial results in 2009/2010 are better than that of last year.



Earnings before Interest and Tax (EBIT) increased marginally

We believe that this is an early indication of the potential of your

to Rs. 537 million. The EBIT increase would have been

brand in this new era.

significantly greater if not for the increase in Nation Building
Tax (NBT) by as much as Rs. 124 million and a one off charge

Macro factors

of Rs. 35 million on account of the discontinuation of the 250

The worst of the global financial crisis appears to be over and
all recent indications are of a gradual improvement in the global

ml returnable glass bottle.


There was a significant reduction in finance charges due to

economy lead by a sharp recovery in Asia. The Sri Lankan economy

lower interest rates as well as improved cash flows enabling

saw a GDP growth of 3.5 per cent in 2009. This was lower than

reduction of debt.

the 6 per cent seen in 2008 but a good performance given the



global environment. Inflation and interest rates declined significantly

million, a 17% increase from the previous financial year figure

through the year while the local currency appreciated, reflecting the
strengthening economic fundamentals post war. The Sri Lankan

The Company registered a Profit before Tax (PBT) of Rs. 469
of Rs. 402 million.



rupee as at 31st March 2010 was Rs.114 to the US dollar compared

The Profit after Tax increased by 15% to register Rs. 280
million

to Rs 115.53 as of 31st March 2009.
After consolidating the results of the Subsidiary Company Jaykay
Marketing Services (Pvt) Ltd., the 100% owned subsidiary


The consolidated revenue increased by 13% to Rs. 14.4 billion



Whilst the consolidated PAT at Rs. 229 million is an
improvement of 64% as against the previous year comparative
PAT of Rs. 140 million.

Your Board has approved for payment a first and final dividend of
Rs. 4.00 per share for the year under review.

Chairman’s
Review
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Beverages

Frozen Confectionary

We are happy to report ‘Elephant Cream Soda’ has been adjudged

Elephant House Ice Creams is the market leader in this category.

the Most Popular Beverage, in the annual Power of People (POP)

The consumer demand during the first half was sluggish due to

award presented by the Sri Lanka Institute of Marketing and A C

reduced purchasing power as result of a rise in the cost of living.

Nielsen through a poll conducted amongst consumers. This is the

This trend was reversed with an improvement in economic activity

fourth consecutive win for Elephant Cream Soda.

in the country coupled with an aggressive promotion of our vanilla

5

range through a special price offer. A new product was offered
For most part of the year, the demand for CSD (Carbonated Soft

during the Christmas season and judging from the consumer

Drinks) was sluggish. However the last quarter demonstrated a

feedback and sales it was a success.

significant improvement in our volumes as well as an increase in our
market share, which reflected positively in our Company’s revenue.

Investment has been committed to expand capacity and capability
to produce a wider range of ‘impulse’ products which will be

Our product portfolio is evaluated based on consumer feed back.

launched during Financial Year 2010/2011.

During the year we introduced a new 200 ml returnable glass bottle
and discontinued the 250 ml glass bottle. The growth in sales was

Supply Chain Management

better than anticipated and the change was a success.

The procurement of local raw materials is covered in depth in the
sustainability report. Our initiatives have benefited both the growers

Production of bottled drinking water under our brand “Blue Fountain”

and your Company. The cost of certain imported raw materials

commenced during the third quarter and is now retailed through our

increased significantly during the year. However the Company has

network in PET bottles of 500ml and 1.5 liters.

been successful in managing the risk associated with this type of
steep price increases in world prices due to its strategy of entering

Although the beverage sector faces stiff competition from

into forward contracts.

multinationals, we have been able to grow market share due to
our investment in the brand and our strong sales and distribution

Several initiatives to improve productivity and reduce costs have

network. Your Company made an early move to the liberated areas in

shown significant results. Improvements to line efficiency and

the North and East by establishing distribution and brand presence.

capacity utilisation, sugar and carbon dioxide yields are among them.

We will continue to nurture and leverage these strengths to grow
our portfolio and volumes.

Retail
The subsidiary Company owning and operating the super market

Our energy drink ‘Wild Elephant’ was re-launched in November

chain “Keells Super” performed better than in the previous year with

2009 and has seen significant growth in volume and share among

operating losses being more than halved. There was a significant

competeting brands.

increase in consumer footfall due to aggressive marketing
campaigns communicating the “Lower than the Lowest” theme to

The investments made during the past three years to increase

dispel the perception of higher prices in our stores. We have however

production capacity and capability to expand our product offering

observed that the contraction of consumer spending power

will enable your Company to meet the anticipated growth.

continues to pose a challenge to increasing revenue despite an
increase in the consumer base.

6

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC |

Annual Report 2009 - 2010

During the year, our outlet expansion was put on hold other than for

four years ago to the executive staff has been successful in

a few specific locations which were identified as having significant

identifying high performers for reward while development activities

potential. We opened two outlets during the year increasing our

encourage others to strive to achieve higher levels of performance.

outlet base to 46. Our newest outlet opened in Galle has performed
well above our expectations. During the year we placed greater

We take pride in continuing our ‘Sustainable Agricultural Sourcing

emphasis on strengthening our internal processes and achieving

Initiative’. This programme ensures our raw material requirement

operational efficiencies. Our ‘Fresh Market’ concept for fruits and

for our Beverages, Frozen Confectionery, Dairy products and Retail

vegetables is growing in strength and we are currently evaluating

sector are met. Most importantly these projects make a positive

setting up more collection centres in order to increase our supply

difference in the lives of the rural people by providing them a

base.

sustainable livelihood with a guaranteed income. At present, we are
evaluating the possibility of extending this programme to the North

Exports

and the East which in turn will help in rebuilding the lives of those in

Despite the global down turn, where the traditional export markets

the previously war-torn areas.

demonstrated a negative growth, our export volumes for beverages
were maintained. This was largely due to the new markets captured

Outlook

in Eastern Europe and the Middle East.

The Elephant House brand has significant equity among local
consumers and our products have a track record of serving

Competing with international brands, ‘Elephant House’ ice cream

consumers island-wide for over a century. Meeting the aspirations of

maintained its’ dominance in the Maldivian market, by growing

a new generation of consumers in a post conflict era, is an exciting

volume by 6%.

challenge. Our brand which was rated AA in a survey done by Brand
Finance, was rated no 1 Favorite Local Brand.

Making a Positive Difference
Sharing the ethos of the JKH Group, our initiatives for sustainable

We will continue to grow brand equity and further initiatives will be

development received priority. Falling in line with a JKH Group

implemented to achieve our goals during Financial Year 2010/2011.

initiative, your Company is working towards reporting on the GRI

A combination of launching new products and supporting the

(Global Reporting Initiatives) Reporting framework. The intention

existing range has been planned backed by investments in

of reporting on this framework is to provide a sound knowledge of

marketing and brand activities.

our processes and practices to all our stakeholders and build best in
class work practices.

It is a concern that despite the Carbonated Soft Drinks (CSD)
industry providing direct and indirect employment to a large number

Your Company has subscribed to a process of collective bargaining

of people as well as significant investments being made in the retail

with its non executive employees and this year a new agreement

network through bottle coolers and merchandising equipment, the

was negotiated for a further three year period. A profit share

category is impacted by a high excise duty and VAT at a luxury rate

scheme will be introduced while certain fixed cost increases have

of 20%. This hinders the growth of the industry. Therefore as an

been capped. The Performance Management System introduced

industry we will continue our efforts of making representations to
the authorities to reduce taxes that govern the trade in order to
stimulate growth and attract more investment to this sector. It is of
note that the per capita consumption of CSD in Sri Lanka is low in
comparison to the developing and developed countries in the region.
In addition to the above the add back of 50% of the advertising
spend and 66% of the Nations Building Tax (NBT) has resulted in
a significant increase in the effective tax rate of the Company and

Chairman’s
Review
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that of many FMCG companies. Whilst we acknowledge the need
for taxation as a means of revenue generation we also believe
that lower tax rates and the allowance for tax deductability of all
expenditure incurred in the production of income in this industry
will enable producers to lower selling prices and as a result achieve
greater volumes which, in turn, will result in increased tax collections
in absolute terms.
We intend opening more Keells Super outlets during the year in
anticipation of an increase in consumer disposable income levels
which should have a knock on effect in consumer spending.
The volume growth reflected in the last quarter of the financial year
gives an indication of the potential the market offers. Whilst this
trend is significant and encouraging, we will continue to strive for
cost efficiencies to maximise this opportunity.

Appreciation
On behalf of the Board, I want to thank our greatest asset, our
employees, for their commitment, conscientiousness and hard work.
I also wish to place on record our appreciation to all our distributors
who have contributed significantly to our efforts to increase
volumes and have ensured that our products are available
throughout the country.
I also want to express my gratitude to my colleagues on the Board
without whose support and guidance we would not have achieved
what we have.
And finally, to all our other stakeholders, I thank you for your
continued confidence and trust in us.

Susantha Ratnayake
Chairman
19th May 2010
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Brand,
A LegendaryTaste

A Legendary
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The Year that Was
The Group experienced a year that reflected the mixed sentiments
in our nation’s economy. Whilst the euphoria of the armed forces
victory, in eradicating the impediment to our country’s success which
lasted for over three decades spread throughout the domestic
economy the lingering effects of the global economic crisis from the
previous year continued to impact the economy.
One of the most dynamic economic sub-sectors in Sri Lanka is the
Food and Beverage segment, which held its’ growth momentum
due to the opening up of the North and East markets as well as
the revival of the tourism industry. This augurs well for the Group
operating in the Fast Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) segment
which includes beverages, frozen confectionary, dairy and retail.
Despite a sluggish first half the opening of the new markets in the
North and East coupled with an improved consumer demand from
the third quarter enabled the Company to improve revenue and
volumes. The initiatives to reduce cost and improve productivity
helped in improving Company profitability despite increase in costs
of raw materials and taxes.

Beverages
During the year the Carbonated Soft Drinks (CSD) segment of the
Company posted a significant increase in profitability on the back of
increased volumes and market share. The increase in volumes comes
after several years of stagnant volume growth. Our volume growth
was more than double of any of our competitors.
Soon after the end of the conflict our sales team together with our
distributors in the Northern area strengthened the retail network
and ensured the availability of our products within easy reach
of the consumers. Our brand has always had a strong appeal to
the people of the North and several of our EH flavours like Necto
and Orange Barley are popular household brands. Even during the
period of the conflict our distributors in the North ensured the
availability of EH drinks in the Jaffna peninsula and therefore the
distributor infrastructure was already in place the meet the increase
in demand. Our team has continued with their efforts to build both
the distribution and retail network in the North and new areas in

Annual Report 2009 - 2010

the East which were opened up. The efforts in distribution were
supported by marketing and merchandising activities to strengthen
our brand presence in the Northern and the Eastern markets.
This included investments in bottle coolers, merchandising at the
retail shop, hoardings and sponsorship of outdoor events. The
volume contribution from the North as well as the East increased
significantly to reach 12% of the national sales volumes and we are
confident that this would further increase during the coming years.
This year we focused on strengthening our distribution network
island wide with several initiatives to improve costs and viability of
our distributors. The re-demarcation of territories and streamlining
of order processing proved to be successful in improving the
product availability and growing our volumes.
As reported in the previous year based on consumer research a
200ml returnable glass bottle was introduced to replace the 250
ml returnable glass bottle which was part of our portfolio for nearly
fifteen years. This change was a success as the volume growth
was higher than plan.
The demand for our PET bottle products in the 500ml and 1.5 Litre
pack sizes also saw a double digit growth in volume during the year.
After several years of declining volumes the 400 ml returnable
glass bottle volumes also increased during the year.
In terms of our flavour offering we did not add any new flavours
to our portfolio and focused on consolidating the current range
by supporting the key flavours with enhanced marketing budgets.
We are extremely proud of “Elephant House Cream Soda” being
voted as the most popular beverage for the fourth consecutive
year at the SLIM and Nielsen people’s award. The fact that this
award is based on consumer feedback is an extremely satisfying
achievement. Our research and development team is working on
developing new flavours and we are confident that we will be in
a position to augment our current flavour offerings in the coming
year. Several of our flavours such as Cream Soda, Necto, Orange
Crush, Apple Soda, Soda and EGB are market leaders in their
respective flavour segments.
During the year we introduced to the market a bottled drinking
water which was launched under our brand
Blue Fountain. We plan to leverage the
brand and distribution reach to gain a
significant share of the bottled water
market.

Management
Discussion and
Analysis
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The category continued to invest in strengthening the brand with
a combined strategy of above the line (ATL) as well as below the
line (BTL) activities. New TV and radio commercials combined
with outdoor promotional activities created brand awareness and
reinforced the positioning of each of our flavours.
The two new CSD bottling lines installed and commissioned in 2008,
operated at higher efficiency levels during the year and met the
increased demand. The increase in sales volumes of PET bottles
necessitated an in-line blow moulding machine to maximise the
filling efficiencies. A contract was entered in to with the supplier
of PET bottles to make this investment and deliver to our quality
standards and volume requirements as an outsource arrangement.
During the year we continued to consolidate and enhance the
efficiencies arising from several initiatives that commenced in the
previous year particularly relating to supply chain efficiencies in
terms of fulfilling distributor stock requirements. For the second
consecutive year, these measures enabled the supply chain to
achieve the benchmark rates of 100% of Order Fill Rate (OFR) and
Pack Fill Rate (PFR) ensuring that pack size and flavour requirements
of the distributors as well as consumers was satisfied. The initiative
taken by the logistics team to process distributor orders a day ahead
of schedule within pre-approved credit limits continued to show a
significant improvement in the lorry turn-around-time.
The present tax regime continues to classify CSD as a luxury item
for Value Added Tax (VAT), charging 20% on beverage products.
Despite industry representations to the authorities there has been
no positive feedback. However as a Company operating in this
industry for over a century, we will continue to lobby for reduced tax
rates for the growth of the industry. Further, a significant increase
in Nation Building Tax (NBT) impacted the financial performance of
the category. These charges have an adverse effect on our bottom
line as we are unable to pass this cost onto the consumer. The
CSD industry requires substantial investment in machinery, bottles,
crates and bottle coolers for the retail network. A high tax regime
therefore impedes growth of this industry. We will endeavor to make
the authorities understand the hindrance caused by these taxes and
levies to the growth of the industry.

Management
Discussion and
Analysis

In comparison to other South Asian countries such as Thailand and
Malaysia, the per capita consumption of beverages in Sri Lanka
continues to be low, at 6.80 liters per person.

Frozen Confectionary
Despite the twin challenge posed to the category as result of the
decrease in consumer purchasing power as well as lower priced
competitor products the Elephant House brand continued to
secure its market leadership position through delivery of superior
quality products and consumer loyalty. Whilst the overall volumes
declined for the year we witnessed a sharp increase in our volumes
in the last quarter. Despite the impact on our bottom line we were
compelled to take certain price adjustments during the last quarter
to be in line with our competitors. This initiative was supported by
promoting the Vanilla range with a value offering and strengthening
its position for unique flavour and texture.
The category sales from the North and the East have more than
doubled during the year and the sales and marketing teams have
undertaken several initiatives to strengthen our brand presence
and availability by increasing our distribution and retail reach.
Investments in freezer units placed in retail shops extended our cold
chain to the new markets opened post conflict.
During the year we also launched two new products to the market.
One of the new variants launched was “Hakuru Mix” in the one litre
pack size which has been very successful. The product is a unique
combination of Kithul Pani with the great taste of Elephant House
Vanilla Ice Cream. This was an immediate hit amongst consumers
who enjoyed the value addition. We also launched a new product
for the first time in Sri Lanka – the Ice Cream Log for the Christmas
season. Judging from consumer feedback and sales off take it was a
success.
With the market expanding, Elephant House Ice Cream continued to
increase its penetration in the low priced segment through the 500
ml range achieving a 26% year on year growth.
A media campaign was launched in the first half of the year, to
clearly differentiate the product quality and positioning from the low
priced ‘me too’ brands. The campaign successfully strengthened the
brand values in the consumer’s mind as the best quality Ice Cream in
the Ice Cream market.

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC |
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Our marketing spend in both the ATL and BTL activity to enhance
the brand image and differentiate the product were supported
by several outdoor activities island wide. Several trade marketing
strategies were carried out during the year expanding the width and
depth of the brand in the country.

Across Borders

The sharp increase in key raw material prices and additional taxes in
the form of NBT eroded our profitability as we were unable to adjust
prices to absorb these additional costs.

Elephant House Ice Creams continue to lead in the Maldives with a
market share of 43% competing with international brands.

Despite the traditional export markets demonstrating a decrease
in volumes, the Elephant soft drinks maintained its export volumes.
This was largely due to the capturing of new markets in Eastern
Europe and in the Middle East.

Employee Relations
Dairy
Elephant House milk continues to ride on the strong brand equity
linked to trust and quality although a relatively small player in
the local dairy market. Elephant House persists to serve its loyal
customers emphasizing its reputation of ‘freshness and goodness’.
Elephant House pasteurised milk was extremely popular in the
greater Colombo area. This was largely due to the distribution being
limited to this district due to the short shelf life of the product.
The product range continued on its growth trend with the newest
addition of a 500 ml pasteurized plastic bottle performing well
among the modern trade shoppers. The pack size came in three
popular flavours – chocolate, vanilla and strawberry. Overall, Elephant
House pasteurized milk performed extremely well, with over a 65%
volume growth over the previous year.

The Company subscribes to the principle of collective bargaining and
enters in to collective agreements with the worker unions. This year
negotiations were aimed at introducing the concept of gain share
to enable the non executive employees to be incentivized based
on improving Company performance. The traditional Cost of Living
Index related payments were delinked.

Achievements





In order to sustain the growth momentum Elephant House works
in partnership with an outsourced manufacturer to produce the
pasteurised milk, using over 5,000 litres per day of fresh milk
collected from approximately 1,100 local dairy farmers around
Hatton, Maskeliya and Laxapana. Stringent quality checks are carried
out to ensure that brand standards are met at all times.

Supply Chain
The Company benefitted from the long term contracts entered in
to for the supply of sugar and shielded itself from the sharp rise in
world prices. Compared to the spot prices our savings were in excess
of Rs. 50 million. However price increase in raw materials such as
skimmed milk powder and whey powder and the rise in import taxes
were obstacles that continued to impact our manufacturing cost.
The effort in improving productivity and efficiency was recognised
by the Ceylon National Chamber of Industries (CNCI) and the
National Productivity Secretariat with awards.



Elephant Cream Soda was adjudged the Most Popular
Beverage for the fourth consecutive year, presented by the
Sri Lanka Institute of Marketing and A C Nielsen.
Adding to its portfolio of accolades, it took top honours at
the prestigious Ceylon National Chamber of Industries (CNCI)
Awards by winning the National Gold (Joint) Award in the Extra
Large Category (Manufacturing Sector)
For its untiring efforts, the Company won a Certificate of
Commendation – Manufacturing Sector (Large Scale) at the
Provincial Productivity Awards conducted by the National
Productivity Secretariat.
The Annual Report of the Company for 2008/2009 was
awarded the Food and Beverage sector Gold by the Institute
of Chartered Accounts of Sri Lanka Annual Report awards. This
was the third consecutive year that the Company won this
award.

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC |
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Net Turnover and
Gross profit
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Retail Segment
During the year our subsidiary Jaykay Marketing Services (Private)
Limited who owns and operates the “Keells” super market chain
added two outlets to the chain which now consists of 46 outlets.
The new outlets opened were in Hokandara and Galle. Due to
contraction in consumer spending which impacted the retail sector
our strategy during the year was to consolidate our front and back
of the house operations with particular emphasis being placed
on process improvements and category management. We have
identified several high potential locations to further expand our
network of outlets in the coming year. Whilst our strategy has been
to expand our outlet base initially in the western province, we are
now seeking to extend our outlet base to several key towns outside
the western province as well.
With the opening up of the North and East for trading our
procurement has extended to these areas with fish and crabs
being sourced from the Jaffna peninsula. Similarly, to optimise the
utilisation of resources available in this post war era, the sourcing
for fruits and vegetables under the ‘Fresh Market’ concept from the
North has been considered. Thus, as the area specialises in growing
mangoes and onions, it was decided to source these items from

this area. The Company also sources fruits and vegetables from
former border villages like Kebithigollawa and Galenbindunuwewa.
We intend to strengthen this sourcing initiative in the coming year.
The ‘’fresh market’’ concept that was introduced in the previous year
was further strengthened during the year. This concept aims to
provide our customers various types of fruits and vegetables that
are not easily available in the marketplace at reasonable prices. The
vegetable collection centres that were established in the previous
years in Tambuththegama and Nuwara-Eliya have continued to
provide impetus to our fresh market concept.
The Company also sources different varieties of rice directly
from areas like Dehiattakandiya, Polonnaruwa, Ampara and
Tissamaharama.
We also launched several marketing campaigns during the year
based on the theme “lower than the lowest” yielding significant
benefits in terms of attracting a new customer base to all our
outlets. The positioning of the Company as delivering, quality, value
and satisfaction was further reiterated, through various promotions
conducted during the year.
The increase in customer count was partly negated by a marginal
reduction in the average basket value particularly due to the
contraction of consumer purchasing power. However, the cost saving
initiatives that were introduced during the year yielded positive
contributions to the bottom line enabling the Company to post
significantly better results than in the previous year.
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Looking Ahead

Financial Performance Review

Based on consumer research a brand strategy which includes new
architecture will be rolled out. This will be backed with new product
development and packaging targeting the younger consumers.

Turnover
The Group turnover increased by 13% to Rs.14.4 Billion (Rs. 12.7
Billion in 2008/2009).

Our brand equity and the strength of our distribution and retail
network of almost 90,000 outlets will be the backbone in our
growth. The revival of the economy and the development in the
consumer market gives us opportunities to grow our market share.

At a Company level the turnover increased by 6% due to increase
in volumes whilst the increase in the turnover at the Subsidiary
Company was due to a combination of increased customers as
well as the addition of two new outlets to the existing network of
supermarkets.

Investments have been planned for Ice Creams to enhance capacity
and our product offerings particularly in the impulse” range. As a
first stage Rs .250 million has been committed for a new in line stick
machine and a flow wrapper. The new products will be available in
the third quarter.
Feasibilty studies are being carried out to increase our product
offering and grow our volumes in diary products.
With the revival of the economy and rise in disposable income the
retail sector looks forward to a bright future. Aggressive revenue
growth plans will be executed with the expansion of more outlets
island wide.

Cost of Sales and Gross Profit
In spite of a sharp increase in global commodity prices and import
duties adversely impacting the key raw material prices, the Company
managed to sustain the Gross Profit (GP) ratio with a slight
increase of 0.5%. As mentioned elsewhere in this report the use
of forward supply contracts with suppliers as well sourcing of raw
materials from alternate sources enabled the Company to mitigate
the increase in raw material costs. The reduction in import duties
towards the latter part of the year also enabled the Company to
mitigate the increase in commodity prices. Increase in labour costs
were also contained at a Group level due to various productivity
initiatives undertaken. Savings also accrued on account of various
energy saving initiatives started in the previous year to contain the
energy costs.
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The overall GP ratio of the Group dipped to 12.5% from 13% in the
previous year taking into account the lower margins in the retailing
Industry in comparison to the Manufacturing Industry and growth in
turnover at the Subsidiary.

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses
At both Company level as well as the Subsidiary level, administrative
costs were kept well below the inflationary impact due to strict cost
control measures that were implemented.

Distribution Expenses
Distribution expenses include the cost incurred in distribution of
products, advertising and promotions undertaken to increase sales
volumes and customer counts at the supermarkets.

At the Company level other operating expenses increased by as
much as 185% due to the impact on account of the Nations Building
Tax (NBT) which increased from Rs. 8 million last year to Rs. 132
million in the current year.

Selling and Distribution Expenses at Company level increased
only by 3% whilst, there was a marginal reduction of 4% at the
Subsidiary Company. Various trade campaigns were undertaken in
the North and the East of the country to strengthen our brand. The
expenditure was on account of creating brand recall in the minds of
the consumers both in terms of “above the line” and “below the line”
activities. Investment was also made in terms of several consumer
promotions. The limitations on full deductibility of advertising spend,
for tax purposes; continue to adversely affect the Company since
this expenditure is an essential part of building and sustaining our
brands on the longer term.

Finance Costs and Interest Cover
During the year under review, interest rates declined towards the
latter part of the year and the Company as well as the Subsidiary
attracted favourable interest rates from the financial institutions,
at low premiums to SLIBOR, leveraging on the Company’s financial
strength. Once again borrowings were structured utilising a mix of
both fixed and variable interest rate instruments to ensure that the
financial impact due to volatility in the capital market was mitigated.

Management
Discussion and
Analysis

The cost of financing at Company level declined to Rs. 68 million
(Rs 139 million 2008/2009), as a result of the repayment of debt
arising from strong cash flows as well as lower interest rates. The
finance cost at the Subsidiary too declined due to increased cash
flows on account of improved operational performance as well as
lower interest rates.
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At a consolidated level the Group’s interest cost reduced to Rs 122
million (Rs 193 million in 2008/2009).
The Group interest cover was 4.4 times (2.4 times 2008/2009),
whilst at Company level it was 8 times ( 4 times in 2008/2009).
Profit from operating activities
Despite stagnant consumer purchasing power which resulted in
the Company taking a cautious approach to increasing prices of
our products, increase in raw material costs, a significant increase
in NBT and a one off charge of Rs. 35 million as impairment for
cost of bottles discontinued, the Company sustained it’s strong
performance resulting in Earnings from operating activities before
interest and tax (EBIT) of Rs. 537 million compared to a EBIT of Rs.
534 million in the previous year.
There was also an improved performance at the Subsidiary where
a EBIT of Rs. 5 million was recorded (2008/2009 Loss of Rs. 73
million) during the year under review which resulted the Group’s EBIT
increasing by 18% to record Rs. 542 Million compared to an EBIT of
Rs. 461 in the previous year.
Taxation
The tax charge for the year at the Company was Rs 189 million
(2008/2009 Rs. 159 million) - an effective tax rate of 40% which
is the same as in the previous year. The restriction on the claim
of advertising expenses for tax purposes to 50% of the expense
incurred together with the disallowance of 66% of the cost of NBT
continued to adversely affect the Company, since advertising is a
significant cost to the Company. The Group Income Tax charge for
the year was Rs. 191 million (2008/2009 Rs. 129 million).
Financial Position – Balance Sheet
Shareholders Fund
As at the Balance Sheet date the total shareholders funds at a
consolidated level was Rs. 2.6 Billion (2008/2009 Rs. 2.5 Billion)
whilst at the Company level the total shareholder funds was Rs. 2.8
Billion as compared to Rs. 2.6 Billion in the previous year.
Asset Base
The Group maintained it’s total asset base at Rs. 6.5 Billion same as
of the previous year. Property Plant and Equipment decreased to
Rs 3.5 Billion from Rs. 3.6 Billion due to depreciation charge of Rs.
364 million being higher than the total investment. Total investment
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in capital expenditure during the year amounted to Rs. 253 million
(2008/2009 Rs. 454 million) as a result of the expansion of the
supermarket network and replacement of assets at both Company
and Subsidiary level.
Current Assets at the Group level increased to Rs. 2.5 Billion
representing a 10% increase from the previous year largely as a
result in the increase in inventories for the season on account of the
super market outlets.
At Group level the reduction in short term borrowings negated the
effect of the increase in Trade and Other payables and resulted in a
marginal increase in the Net current assets position. We are of the
view that this will continue to improve in the coming years as well.
Cash Flow and Liquidity
The Company’s key sources of finance for the foreseeable future
are likely to be cash generated from operations and an effective
combination of long term and short term borrowings. Therefore it
is envisaged that sources of finance will provide sufficient capacity
of liquidity to service debt and meet future working capital, capital
expenditure and dividend payment requirements.
The Company operates its own treasury function assisted by the
Treasury division of John Keells Holdings PLC based on the policies
and plans approved by the Board. CCS Treasury manages a variety
of market risks, including the effects of changes in foreign exchange
rates, interest rates and liquidity. Further details of the management
of these risks are given on page 36. The CCS Treasury’s role is to
ensure that appropriate financing is available for all value-creating
investments. Additionally, the Treasury delivers financial services
to allow the Company to manage their financial transactions and
exposures in an efficient, timely and low-cost manner.
Cash generated from operations of the Group inclusive of working
capital changes increased to Rs. 1,422 million in the current year (Rs.
919 million 2008/2009) whilst at Company level it was Rs. 1,157
million in comparison to Rs. 799 million in the previous year.
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The total net borrowings at a Group level including overdrafts net
of cash continued to decrease during the year and was at Rs. 847
million (Rs. 1,450 million 2008/2009) at the Balance Sheet date
whilst at Company Level it was Rs. 199 million against Rs. 736
million in the previous year. This decline was due to part repayment
of the borrowings and reduction in overdraft. Accordingly, the
Gearing Ratio at the Company Level stood at 10% and at the Group
level was 37%.
Ceylon Cold Stores PLC and Jaykay Marketing Services (Pvt) Ltd are
satisfied that their respective financing arrangements are adequate
to meet the working capital needs for the foreseeable future.
Shareholder Value
The Company’s strategic priorities are primarily focused on delivering
shareholder value through the achievement of sustainable, capital
efficient and long term profitability growth.
The basic Earnings per Share (EPS) for the Group increased to Rs.
10.60 (Rs. 6.46- 2008/2009), whilst for the Company it stood at
Rs.12.96 (Rs. 11.26 - 2008/2009).
The Group net assets per share at book value stood at Rs. 122.10
(Rs. 115.50 - 2008/2009) whilst at Company Level it stood at Rs.
129.47 (Rs.120.51- 2008/2009).
The Company’s share price as at 31 March 2010 was Rs. 172.00
moving within a range of Rs. 68.00 to Rs. 185.00 during the year.
The market capitalisation of the Company, as at the year end was
Rs. 3.7 Billion. (Rs. 1.5 Billion 2008/2009)
Return on Equity (ROE) for the Group stood at 8.7 % (2008/2009
- 5.7% ) and for the Company at 10.4% (2008/2009 - 9.8%) whilst
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) also increased to 14.3% as
against the 11.5%.
A first and final dividend of Rs. 4 per share (2008/2009 Rs. 4 per
share) amounting to a total payout of Rs. 86.4 Million (2008/2009
Rs. 86.4 million) was approved for payment by the Directors.

Management
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(In alphabetical Order)

Marian Arsekularatne

-

Manager - R & D / Quality Control

Premananda Attanayake

-

Factory Manager - Frozen Confectionary

Jayathilaka Bandara

-

Manager - Quality Compliance

Ivan Dassanayake

-

Process Manager - Essence

Ujith De Silva

-

Manager - Quality System

Ranjith Edirisinghe

-

Marketing Services Manager - Beverages

Wasanthalal Fernando

-

National Sales Manager - Beverages

Daminda Gamlath

-

Vice President -Head of Finance / Sector Financial Controller

Jitendra Gunaratne

-

President /Chief Executive Officer

Augustine Gunawardena

-

Manager - Head of Tax

Nilantha Jayasinghe

-

Manager - Employee Relations

Sanjeewa Jayaweera

-

Executive Vice President - Chief Financial Officer

Sasanka Jayawardane

-

Finance Manager - Management Accounting

Pradeep Maherambe

-

Production Manager - Beverages

Wasantha Malwattege

-

Assistant Vice President - Head of Sourcing & Procurement

Niranjan Palipane

-

Manager Marketing - Beverages

Chandima Perera

-

Vice President - Head of Category - Beverages

Mithila Poholiadde

-

Manager - Logistics

Surani Sahabandu

-

Marketing Manager - Frozen Confectionary

Neil Samarasinghe

-

Vice President- Head of Category - Frozen Confectionary

Lakshitha Samaranayake

-

Manager - Human Resource

Gihan Samarakkody

-

Manager - Finance

Nalaka Umagiliya

-

Assistant Vice President - IT Business Solutions

Kamal Wickramasinghe

-

Manager - Engineering

Rohana Witanachchi

-

Vice President - Head of Supply Chain Management

Management
Team
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Susantha Ratnayake

Ronnie Peiris

Non Independent – Non Executive
Chairman

Non Independent – Non Executive
Director

Mr. Ratnayake was appointed to the Board of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC
from 01st October 2002 and was appointed as Chairman in January
2006.

Mr. Peiris was appointed to the Board of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC from
01st June 2003.

Mr. Ratnayake was appointed as the Chairman and CEO of John
Keells Holdings PLC in January 2006 and has served on the JKH
Board since 1992/93. He is also the Chairman of many of the listed
and un-listed companies within the Group. He is a council member
of the Employers’ Federation of Ceylon, serves on various clusters
of the National Council of Economic Development (NCED) and is the
Vice Chairman of the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce. He has over
32 years of management experience, all of which is within the John
Keells Group.

Ajit Gunewardene
Non Independent – Non Executive
Director

He was appointed to the JKH Board in 2002/03, and has overall
responsibility for Group Finance including Treasury, Taxation,
Corporate Finance, Group Initiatives, Shared Services and the
Information Technology functions at the centre. Previously, he
was the Managing Director of Anglo American Corporation (Central
Africa) Limited and EXCO member of Konkola Copper Mines PLC, both
in Zambia. Ronnie has served on many Boards overseas and has over
38 years finance and general management experience in Sri Lanka
and abroad. He is a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants, UK, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
UK, and the Society of Certified Management Accountants, Sri
Lanka, and holds a MBA from the University of Cape Town, South
Africa. He is a member of the committee of the Ceylon Chamber of
Commerce, Chairman of its taxation sub committee and also serves
on its economic, fiscal and policy planning sub committee. He is
currently the Vice President of Institute of Directors.

Mr. Gunewardene was appointed to the Board of Ceylon Cold Stores
PLC from 01st October 2002.

Jitendra Gunaratne
Mr. Gunewardene is the Deputy Chairman of John Keells Holdings
PLC and has been a member of the Board for over 17 years. He is
a Director of many companies in the John Keells Group and is the
Chairman of Nations Trust Bank PLC and Union Assurance PLC. He
is a member of the Board of Nanco (Pvt) Ltd, a Company established
for the development of Nanotechnology in Sri Lanka under the
auspices of the Ministry of Science and Technology. He was also
appointed as a member of the National Advisory Council for Export
Development (NACFED) by the Minister of Export Development
and International Trade. He has also served as the Chairman of the
Colombo Stock Exchange. He is a member of the Board of the Sri
Lanka Tourism Promotion Bureau. Mr. Gunewardene has a degree in
Economics and brings over 26 years of management experience.

Board of
Directors

Non Independent – Executive
Director
Mr. Gunaratne, is the President of the Consumer Foods sector of the
John Keells Group and was appointed to the Board of Ceylon Cold
Stores PLC in 2004/2005
Prior to his appointment as President, he overlooked the Plantation
and the Consumer Food and Retail sectors. His 29 years of
management experience in the Group also covers Leisure and
Property. Jitendra holds a diploma in marketing and serves as a
member of the advisory committee on consumer affairs of the
Ceylon Chamber of Commerce.

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC |

Annual Report 2009 - 2010

19

Rasakantha Rasiah

Uditha Liyanage

Independent - Non Executive
Director

Independent - Non Executive
Director

Mr. Rasakantha Rasiah was appointed to the Board of Ceylon Cold
Stores PLC, from 1st July 2005. He is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.

Dr. Liyanage, PhD, was appointed to the Board of Ceylon Cold Stores
PLC from 1st July 2005. Dr. Liyanage is a member of the Audit
Committee of the Board of Directors.

He is a graduate of the University of Ceylon and a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka. He brings
to the Board a wealth of experience in the FMCG industry. He has
wide experience of over 30 years in the industry both locally and
overseas. He was the former Finance Director of Nestle Lanka
PLC, holding the position for over a decade. He was also a visiting
lecturer in “Finance and Accounts” for Nestle SA (international) for
Africa-Asia Oceania region. He was the former President of the
Benevolent Society of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Sri Lanka.

He brings to the Board extensive knowledge and experience in
the sphere of Marketing activities. Dr. Liyanage is a Director of the
Postgraduate Institute of Management (PIM) of the University of Sri
Jayawardenepura. He is a Consultant to a number of key companies
and international agencies. Dr. Liyanage has published widely
in reputed journals on Strategic Marketing, and addressed many
international conferences on similar subject matter. He is a past
Chairman of the Chartered Institute of Marketing (CIM) and former
member of the International Board of Trustees of CIM.

He is also a Director of Nations Trust Bank PLC, MTD Walkers PLC
and a commercial advisor of Ceylon Pencil Co Ltd.. He is also a
Former visiting lecturer on Finance at Postgraduate Institute of
Management (PIM) and a keen sportsman and represented Sri Lanka
at Table tennis.

Prasanna Jayawardena
Independent - Non Executive
Director
Mr. Jayawardene joined the Board of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC from 1st
July 2005 and serves as a member of the Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors.
He brings to the Board wide knowledge and experience in the
sphere of Law. Mr. Jayawardene is an Attorney-at-Law who
specialises in Commercial Law, Industrial Law, Banking Law and
Intellectual Property Law. Prior to commencing practice as a
Lawyer, he was at HSBC in a senior management capacity for over
a decade and has extensive experience in the Banking Industry. Mr.
Jayawardene is a Director of the Environmental Foundation Ltd.
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What we mean by Sustainability
The Elephant brand boasts of a rich heritage that not many others
can compete with. Sustaining a brand for over 140 years is a
remarkable achievement in today’s ever-changing, dynamic business
world. Whilst the title of the owner changed over the years, the
elephant brand has remained one and the same reflecting, quality,
trust and value-for-money.

Our sustainability initiatives revolve around the growth of the
business by adhering to Good Manufacturing Practices (GMP)
and Good Hygiene Practices (GHP), sourcing from and uplifting
the lives of farmers to ensure the continuity of the business
through Sustainable Agricultural Sourcing Initiatives, engaging in
environmental conservation projects and humanitarian activities.

Continuity of the Business
At Ceylon Cold Stores (CCS), we believe sustainable development is
about satisfying the present needs without compromising the ability
of future generations satisfying theirs. In other words meeting our
needs whilst preserving the environment and developing the society
to aid the growth of economies to build a brighter tomorrow. Our
focal point is the positive effects that we can leave behind for the
generations to come. In order to achieve this, CCS strives to offer
innovative products built through a series of ethical and transparent
practices whilst ensuring the minimising of the magnitude of risks
and threats that can obliterate our collective sustainability.

Our Sustainability Drive
Our sustainability drive is guided by the Head of Supply Chain
Management and supported by representatives from all business
units across the entire organisation. At the pinnacle of the
sustainability committee lies the necessity to reinforce the
Company’s requirement in their vision, of delivering pleasure and
nutrition throughout peoples’ lives through exciting and superior
products, whenever and wherever they choose to eat and drink.
In bolstering this vision, the committee strives to ensure the
Company preserves and nurtures all its’ stake holders, whether it
be employees, consumers, suppliers, business partners and share
holders.
For its sustainability coverage, we as a part of the John Keells
Group adhere to the Group Sustainability Policy. Furthermore the
committee, in its attempt to make the Company more socially
responsible, brainstorms ideas and inspirations to decide on a
particular project which would serve the purpose concerned as well
as augment the Elephant House brand.

Consumer loyalty lies at the epicenter of our business. The sole
reason for the Elephant House brand to survive for over a century is
the wealth of loyal consumers the brand enjoys. Therefore our entire
focus is driven to provide optimum satisfaction to our consumers
by supplying products with quality, that consumers’ perceive to be
greater than its’ price. Thus, the consistency in quality in our range
of products enriches the consumers’ confidence in the brand and
thereby leads to the strengthening of our business.
We execute several process focused initiatives internally as well as
externally, to maintain customer loyalty. Within the organisation we
instill the value of ‘deliverance of quality’ amongst all employees
across the organisation by conforming to industry norms in
executing good manufacturing practices and implementing
continuous improvement activities that kept in line with the
conditions of meeting SLS standards. All this and more resulted in
our efforts being endorsed by the ISO 9000 quality management
system and ISO 22000 food safety management system
certification.
Outside the organisation, we endeavor to manage and ensure that
delivering of quality is carried out throughout the supply chain from
the raw material supplier to the retailer.
Our understanding of delivering a quality product has shifted
backward to ensure quality maintenance of the inputs that arrive
at our premises. That is, we perform quality audit checks at our
supplier’s premises to ensure that our inputs conform to the quality
we require. By this initiative whilst we preserve our business interest
of a constant quality supply, we also support the supplier to perform
his task effectively and efficiently with minimum waste.
We conducted several Quality Awareness programmes for Public
Health Inspectors (PHI’s), in the districts of Matale, Anuradhapura,
Gampaha, Matara and Badulla. These programmes, being the
seconded cycle in a series, were conducted by the combined efforts
of our Quality and Sales staff. The objective of the programme was
to upgrade their knowledge on the food safety practices adopted

Sustainability
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by the Company and for us to gain information about issues at the
market place of our products relating to quality and food safety.
We took a step further in our recycling of PET bottles project,
and thereby completed our intended 2nd phase. Previously we
collected damaged PET bottles, at a centralized location in the
Company at Ranala and these were cleared by recyclers registered
with the Central Environment Authority. This work-in-progress
refuse amounted to 6,000 bottles per month, approximately 300
kgs. During the year, we expanded this initiative to collecting the
bottles at the distributor level. The objective of this project was to
expand the empty PET bottle collection network and to increase
the quantity of collection, in order to minimise pollution that can be
caused by these plastic bottles to the environment. According to
the data collected, the number of bottles collected exceeds 12,000
per month amounting to 600 kgs. The 3rd phase in this project is
to collect the PET bottles from the consumer, which amounts to
over 90% of the PET bottle consumption. Even though this phase
needs to be performed to make an actual impact of protecting the
environment, the enormity in coverage of this phase requires the
cooperation of the entire industry.
For all positive business initiatives devised and executed, the
Company was rewarded with the National Gold (Joint) Award in
the Extra Large Category (Manufacturing Sector) at the Ceylon
National Chamber of Industries (CNCI) awards and the Certificate
of Commendation – Manufacturing Sector (Large Scale) at
the Provincial Productivity Awards conducted by the National
Productivity Secretariat.

Sustainable Agricultural Sourcing Initiatives
Our nation, one of the most enriched with natural resources,
possesses labour in abundance that can partake in agricultural
projects to raise the living standards of villagers and thereby the
growth in the domestic economy. Despite the villagers access to
and ownership of fertile land, the lack of awareness about market
opportunities, knowledge, technical know-how and financing
methods renders most rural villagers to live in a deprived state.
In this light, the Company commenced a sustainable initiative
program eight years ago, with the intent of sourcing the required
raw material for the business as well as developing the lives of
farmers. The Company provides direct access to markets thereby
eliminating the middle man and guarantees sale for the farmer’s
produce through forward contracts, whist knowledge of responsible
and modern farming techniques, conservation methods of soil
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and finance is provided by CCS with the aid of relevant experts.
Technical know-how is provided by us in conjunction with the
Agricultural Department and financing schemes are provided by the
Development Banks in those areas.
CCS enters into forward contracts with farmers, stipulating the price,
quantity and quality standards that need to be satisfied. Once the
farmer services the contract, the farmer collects the payment from
the development bank to which CCS makes payment.
The Company initially embarked on this project through the Ginger
Out-Grower programme and having experienced the success of
the project, subsequently progressed further into Vanilla, Treacle,
Cashew and Vegetable Out-Grower projects. The Cashew project will
commence in the ensuing year. These projects have demonstrated
a significant and positive impact on the lives of farming families as
the middle man is eliminated thereby ensuring that the farmer gets
a fair price for his produce. It has also contributed to the smooth
functioning of the procurement process of the Company and
eliminated the need for importation of raw materials. This has led to
a reduction in raw material costs which in turn has had a significant
impact on the Company’s bottom line.
Ginger Out-Grower Programme
The was the very first program initiated by CCS eight years ago
under our ‘Agricultural Sourcing Initiative’ project in partnership
with Kandurata Development Bank and it continues to grow from
strength –to-strength, demonstrating a significant improvement in
the lives of farming families in the Aludeniya, Galabawa, Poojapitiya
and Udawa areas of the Kandy District. The Department of
Agriculture continued to advise farmers, both men and women and
inspect the crop rotation in these farms.
CCS was able to purchase 15MT of dried ayurvedic ginger which is
75% of the total requirement of 20MT required to derive the unique
flavour in our well loved Elephant House Ginger Beer (EGB) (5 kgs
of raw ginger is required to produce one kg of dried ginger). The
number of farmers in this program remained static at 250.
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Vanilla Out-Grower Program
The growth witnessed in quantity and quality amongst the vanilla
growers within the five years in operation is remarkable. The total
requirement of vanilla for our products of Elephant House including
Vanilla Ice Cream, Hakuru Mix, Pani Cadju, Twist range, Fruit and Nut
and Winter Slice was sourced from the 2,500 farmers under this
programme located in Badulla, Matale, Kandy, Kurunegala, Kegalle
and Nuwara Eliya. The financial year concluded witnessed an excess
supply of vanilla and we are evaluating means of exporting this
excess produce as there is a huge demand for vanilla globally.

50 % of our total requirement in four years. These cashews will be
utilised for our succulent Pani Cadju and Fruit and Nut ice cream
products.

The Kandy Vanilla Farmers Association (KVFA) continued the
process of collecting raw vanilla beans from the farmers and
curing them to provide the Company with cured vanilla beans for
extraction. During the past year, KVFA provided 950 kgs of cured
vanilla beans to CCS. This demonstrated an increase in volume of
150 kgs over the previous year.

Treacle Manufacturing Project
This project was expanded during the year to include the production
of Jaggery.

KVFA advised and assisted these farmers as previously, on
managing their small plots of vanilla beans. The success seen in this
home-gardening type venture, of the vanilla growers both men and
women, was reflected in their raised standards of living. According
to the farmers this initiative has resulted in a significant increase in
their income with the average price having increased to Rs 1,100
per kg of Vanilla against Rs 150 per kg previously.
Cashew Out-Grower Programme
The cashew grown in our country is known to be amongst the
best in the world. The location for this sustainable agricultural
project was selected and is in the process of being implemented in
Mangalagama, in the Eastern Province. Approximately 30 cashew
grower families from the area between Mahaoya and Ampara will
benefit from this project whilst endeavoring to obtain a sustainable
source of quality cashew nuts for our products. The machines
required for this project has been purchased and will be installed in
time for the cropping season, which is in June. CCS requires 8,000kgs
of processed cashew per month. We anticipate purchasing between
500 – 1,000 kgs of processed cashew per month in the ensuing
year. We intend to increase the production to fulfill a minimum of

The Farmers Society was formed and CCS will advise and assist the
farmers in technical know-how and hygienic aspects. This program
was implemented in partnership with the Uva Development Bank.
The farmers have the freedom to sell the By-Products produced in
this process of cashew extraction for extra income.

CCS, requirement of treacle for the year remained at 11 M Tons and
this is used for the production of our popular Pani Cadju ice cream.
The procurement levels of treacle remained the same as last year
with 45% of our requirement being sourced from 12 farmers.
The extension made to this project with the inclusion of Jaggery
was required for our mouth watering Hakuru Mix ice cream. Our
requirement of Jaggery for the concluded year was 45,000 kgs, and
was sourced from Varella and Deniyaya areas. 20 farming families
benefit from this project.
This project is a joint venture with a local NGO from Deniyaye,
Janatha Nilwala Krushi Nishpadana Sangamaya , and together we
assisted and advised a total of 32 farmers.
Vegetable Collection Project
The Keells Super chain, having approximately 46 retail outlets under
its umbrella replenishes all its fruits and vegetables under the Fresh
Market concept, through this Vegetable Collection Initiative. These
vegetable collection centres are situated in Thambuththegama and
Nuwara Eliya.
The Mahaweli Authority evaluates the functions of farmers and
advises them on the quality requirements of the produce and its
packaging, whilst CISIR provides technical knowledge on modern
and safe farming techniques. The improvement observed under this
initiative in the quality of the produce collected is remarkable.
With the opening up of the North and East for trading our
procurement has extended to these areas with fish, crabs, mangoes
and onions being sourced from the Jaffna peninsula. The Subsidiary
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also sources fruits and vegetables from former border villages like
Kebithigollawa and Galenbindunuwewa. The Subsidiary also sources
different varieties of rice directly from areas like Dehiattakandiya,
Polonnaruwa, Ampara and Tissamaharama. We intend to strengthen
these sourcing initiatives in the coming year.

Our Employees
CCS Group believes, that the Group is not about the buildings,
machines or the technology that is within it: but the people in the
organisation. The Company is made up of people: the committed,
diligent and conscientious workforce, without whom the Company
and its Subsidiaries will not be a success. Therefore CCS strives
at every given opportunity to give the best to its employees and
enhance their lives.
A new collective agreement was negotiated to change the existing
model, where we brought in a ‘productivity and gain –share concept’,
in which the Company as well as the employees both benefit.
CCS continued to adopt methods to care for its employees and
their families. A scholarship programme was granted to employees’
children, who succeeded in entering the university. Further an
English language skills enhancing programme was sponsored for the
children who have passed the G.C.E. Ordinary Level Examination.
CCS also organises an Annual Avurudhu event for its staff and
family members to build a closer relationship between the Company
and the employee.
Employee Age Profile
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The sustainability policies adopted by the Group were observed
across the board throughout the entire organisation.
Training and Development
The competitiveness of our business is based on the employees’
performance. Therefore we continuously invest in providing
the environment and resources for our employees to perform
exceptionally and consistently. The Group carries out its training and
development programs for the year based on the Annual Training
Plan. This is a competency based training process where initially the
plan is mapped out to identify the strategic goals and objectives
that need to be achieved and the skills and knowledge required
to achieve that objective. After evaluating the employees and
identifying the strategic gaps, programs are developed to support
the employees to fulfil these gaps.
At each level there are Assessment Centre Programme and
Development Centre Programmes. The Assessment Centre
programme identifies good performers and evaluates where they
fit at their existing level. The Development Centre programmes
evaluate whether the chosen worker fits the next level. During the
year, five employees were chosen for these programmes and one
was promoted to the manager cadre.
The Group evolves in a culture where all employees are evaluated
and good performers are rewarded in terms of recognition. Managers
and above are awarded the “Chairman’s Award” for exceptional
performance and Executives and Assistant Managers outstanding
performance is awarded by the “Champion’s Award”.
The Company also rewards high achievers on the V-SPARC scheme.
V-SPARC stands for Value- Superior Performance And Recognition
Creation. Here a supervisor will award V-SPARC to an employee who
displays JKH values.
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During the year, chosen employees were sent to Japan, Malaysia and
Chennai for ‘Technical Competency Training’.
The Subsidiary also runs a Retail Academy, to train employees in
the retail chain. The Academy encompasses different modules for
training and there is an Advanced Retail Program conducted for
managers.
Health and Safety
The Employees Health and Safety Committee (EHS) was formulated
to ensure health and safety within the workplace as well as to
minimise or eradicate any harmful impact that may be caused on the
environment by our business processes. This committee carries out
OHS Audits, Fire Fighting Drills, Safety Awareness programmes and
Lead Auditing programmes.

Environmental Conservation
The rapid depletion of non-renewable resources, exhaustion of
forest areas and wet lands, leading to the extinction of animal and
plant species and the deterioration in air and water quality have
resulted in severe weather conditions and natural disasters. As a
responsible corporate citizen, CCS strives to maintain the ecological
balance in all its business decisions.
CCS continues to improve its efforts on the environmental front.
During the year, landscaping of the Mahawala Stretch was initiated
to avoid erosion and protect the banks on either side of the road.
Another ongoing project of CCS is the maintenance of the Depa
Ela, where cleaning of the water and repairing of the banks are
being carried out through continuous inspections. This project was
initiated to purify the water that gets contaminated due to the
‘treated effluent’ being disposed into the canal from the factory.
Our commitment to the Kanneliya Forest progressed this year and
included donating the main name board of the Kanneliya Forest as
well as tree identification boards.
Apart from the above special projects, initiated to care for
the environment, CCS has instilled the value of ‘caring for the
environment’ across the entire organsiation. Further in the retail
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sector the initiation to encourage consumers to use cloth bags (red
bag) at the super markets, is also to minimise the use of polythene
bags to avoid environment contamination.
Resource Management
During the year, several energy saving initiatives were implemented
including, making plant adjustments, replacements of copper
ballasts, installation of a steam operated oil pre heater and
installation of a power factor correction system. Further the
Company, together with The Sri Lanka Sustainable Energy Authority
conducted an Energy Awareness programme to educate all our
factory staff about energy saving requirements. The Company
ensures that all new equipment being purchased is energy efficient.
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We endeavourer to encourage all staff to use water sparingly whilst
we installed meters to monitor usage and thereby attempt to find
means of saving. The feasibility study on Recycling Water is still
being carried out.
The refrigeration compressors at the Ranala factory continues to
operate at the same capacity, whilst the Central Environmental
Authority analyses water discharged from the factory to ensure its
hygienic status.
Last year CCS embarked on another programme where employees
were empowered to find ways and means of performing their
jobs more efficiently. Therefore several teams were formed across
the organisation to come up with new ideas to bring about cost
efficiencies and savings.

Community
CCS, strives at all times to be an exceptional corporate citizen by
sharing and caring for those underprivileged societies.
We chose 16 athletes and the main coach from the Rajasinghe
Central College - National Sports School and sponsored their
activities to develop their athletic skills. One of the selected
athletes represented the country at the Junior Asian Games held
in Singapore and was ranked fifth in the High Jump event. CCS
provided this student with a special pair of High Jump shoes and he
is currently being trained for the Junior Olympic Games. The entire
team is provided with nutritional food, an insurance cover worth
Rs. 1,000,000 each and this includes an insurance cover for the
coach, financial scholarships for G.C.E. O/L students to fund their
tuition expenses, medical checkups from the Colombo South General

Teaching Hospital and financial support for medicine if prescribed. In
addition sports equipment and sportswear has been donated.
The Company provided a vendor cart with an ice chest to a
differently able person, to enable him to have a livelihood by using it
to sell our Elephant House soft drinks, lunch packets and biscuits.

Looking Ahead to 2010
We will continue pursuing our sustainability drive throughout the
coming year focusing on quality of products, improving our work
environment and welfare of our employees, continuing our support
for the community and environment as well as looking further into
energy and water savings.
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Ceylon Cold Stores PLC (CCS) and its Subsidiaries Jaykay Marketing
Services (Private) Limited and Elephant House Farms (Pvt) Ltd. are
referred to as the ‘Group’ and through its holding Company John
Keells Holdings PLC (JKH) has a Corporate Governance philosophy
founded on a culture of performance within a framework of
conformance and compliance to succeed in today’s competitive
business environs in a manner that is sustainable and equitable to
all our stakeholders. This philosophy has been institutionalised at
all levels in the Group through a strong set of corporate values and
a written code of conduct that all employees, senior management
and the Board of Directors are required to follow in the performance
of their official duties and in other situations that could affect
the Group’s image. Directors and employees at all levels are
expected to display ethical and transparent behaviour through their
communication and role modeling.










The Group corporate governance policies are in full compliance with
the following and where necessary, any deviations as allowed by the
relevant rules and regulations have been disclosed.






The Companies Act No 7 of 2007.
The Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE)
(revised January 2010) .
The recommendations of the Combined Code of 2008 to the
extent that they are practicable in the context of the nature of
our diverse businesses and their risk profiles.
All provisions of the Code on Governance of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.

Corporate governance framework
The Group is committed to the highest standards of business
integrity, ethical values and professionalism in all its activities
towards rewarding all its stakeholders with greater creation of
value, year-on-year. Our governance framework which has been
communicated to all levels of management and staff in individual
businesses and function units is based on the following –


The Board is responsible to the shareholders to fulfil its
stewardship obligations, in the best interest of the Company
and its stakeholders

Maximising shareholder wealth-creation on a sustainable basis
while safeguarding the rights of multiple stakeholders.
The methods we employ to achieve our goals are as important
to us as the goals themselves.
No one person has unfettered powers of decision making.
Building and improving stakeholder relationships is an integral
aspect of Board effectiveness and a responsible approach to
business.
Opting, when practical, for early adoption of best practice
governance regulations and accounting standards.
Our resolve to maintain strong governance practices which
present strong commercial advantages especially through a
lowering of our cost of capital as a result of the strengthened
stakeholder confidence, particularly the confidence of our
investors, both institutional and individual.
The making of business decisions, and resource allocations,
in an efficient and timely manner, within a framework that
ensures transparent and ethical dealings which are compliant
with the laws of the country and the standards of governance
our stakeholders expect of us.

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is the focal point of the Group’s corporate
governance process and is ultimately accountable and responsible
for the performance and affairs of the Group.

Board composition and directors’ independence
The Board of Directors of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC consists of the
Chairman who is a non executive non independent director, two
non executive non independent directors, three non executive
independent directors and one executive director.
The Board members have a wide range of expertise as well as
significant experience in corporate, marketing, legal and financial
activities enabling them to discharge their governance duties in an
effective manner.
Independence of the Directors have been determined in accordance
with the criteria suggested by the Combined Code and the criteria
of the CSE Listing Rules (revised in January 2010). The three
independent non-executive Directors have submitted signed
confirmations of their independence.

Board Responsibilities and Decision rights
The Board of Directors is accountable to the shareholders for the
governance of the Company. All Directors are accountable for the
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Name of Director

Executive / Non
Executive

Independent /
Non Independent

Involvement/
Interest in
Shareholding

Involvement/
Interest in
Management

Involvement/
Interest in Supply
Contracts

Mr. S. C. Ratnayake – Chairman

Non Executive

Non Independent

Yes

No

No

Mr. A. D. Gunewardene

Non Executive

Non Independent

Yes

No

No

Mr. J. R. F. Peiris

Non Executive

Non Independent

Yes

No

No

Mr. J. R. Gunaratne

Executive

Non Independent

Yes

Yes

No

Mr. P. Jayawardene

Non Executive

Independent

Yes

No

No

Dr. U. Liyanage

Non Executive

Independent

Yes

No

No

Mr. A. Rasiah

Non Executive

Independent

Yes

No

No

proper stewardship of the Company’s affairs and share responsibility
in ensuring the highest standards of disclosure and reporting, ethics
and integrity across the group. Powers specifically reserved for the
Board decision matrix’ include –









Providing direction and guidance to the Group in the
formulation of its strategies and in the pursuance of its
operational and financial goals.
Monitoring systems of governance and compliance.
Overseeing systems of internal control and risk management.
Determining any changes to the discretions/authorities.
delegated by the Board to the executive levels.
Approving major acquisitions and disposals and capital
expenditure.
Reviewing HR processes with emphasis on top management
succession planning.
Approving annual budgets and strategic plans.

Non Executive/Independent Directors and the Board
Balance
All non-executive directors (NED) are encouraged to propose
discussion items for the Board meetings.
The Board is of the view that its present composition ensures a
right balance between executive expediency and independent
judgment. Collectively, the non-executive directors bring a range of
value adding domestic and international experience, and expertise,
in specialised functions. The Company is conscious of the need
to maintain an appropriate mix of skills and experience on the
Board and to refresh progressively its composition over time. The
Company also notes the value that has been brought to bear by the
non-executive directors on the governance of the Group. The non-

executive directors of the Board collectively possess strong financial
acumen and are in good positions to assess the integrity of the
Group’s financial reporting systems and controls, continually review
and critique these systems and make changes to them as necessary.

Access to Management Information
The Board Members meet the executive director and senior
management staff once every three months to review among
other matters, the performance and Financial Statements for the
period. Procedures exist to ensure that Directors receive relevant
documentation in advance of each meeting. Guidelines with regard
to the content and presentation have been established for all
documents submitted. Quarterly accounts, including key operational
and financial ratios, are circulated to the Board and discussed at
the quarterly meetings. In addition controls are in place to ensure
compliance with the policies of the Board. The Board of Directors
have unrestricted access to all Company information, records,
documents, and property.

Chairman of the Board
The Chairman is a non executive non independent Director. The
Chairman conducts Board Meetings ensuring effective participation
of all Directors. The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership
to the Board and ensuring that proper order and effective discharge
of Board functions are carried out at all times by the Board Members.
The roles of the Chairman and the President / Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) are separate with a clear distinction of responsibilities
between them. The executive responsibility for the functioning
of the Company’s business including implementation of strategies
approved by the Board and developing and recommending to the
Board the business plans and budgets that support the Company’s
strategy has been entrusted to the President / CEO.
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Financial Expertise
The Board of Directors consists of two senior qualified Accountants
with significant experience in the corporate sector. Both of them
posses the necessary knowledge and expertise to offer the Board
of Directors guidance on matters of finance. One of them serves
as the Finance Director of the parent Company whilst the others as
Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Board Meetings
The Board met five times during the year. The attendance at these
meetings was as follows.

29th April ‘09

30th July ‘09

29th October ‘09

27th November ‘09

27th January ‘10

Attendance of Board
Meetings

Mr. S. C. Ratnayake - Chairman

Y

Y

Y

Y

N

Mr. A. D. Gunewardene

N

Y

Y

Y

Y

Mr. J. R. F. Peiris

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Mr. J. R. Guneratne

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Dr. U. P. Liyanage

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Mr. P. S. Jayawardena

Y

Y

Y

Y

Y

Mr. A. R. Rasiah

Y

Y

Y

Y

N

Re-Election of Director’s
At each Annual General Meeting one third of the Directors, retire by
rotation on the basis prescribed in the Articles of Association of the
Company and are eligible for re-election. The Directors who retire
are those who have been longest in office since their appointment /
re-appointment. In addition any new Director who was appointed to
the Board during the year is required to stand for re-election at the
next Annual General Meeting.
The re-election of Directors ensure that shareholders have an
opportunity to reassess the composition of the Board. The names
of the Directors submitted for re-election are provided to the
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shareholders in advance to enable them to make an informed
decision on their election.
The retiring Directors eligible for re-election this year are mentioned
in the Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Audit Committee, External Auditors and independence
The Audit Committee comprises solely of Non-executive,
Independent Directors and conforms to the requirements of the
Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange. It is governed
by a Charter, which inter alia, covers the reviewing of policies
and procedures of internal control, Business Risk Management,
Compliance with Laws and Company Policies and Independent Audit
Function.
The Committee is also responsible for the consideration and
appointment of External Auditors, the maintenance of a professional
relationship with them, reviewing accounting principles, policies and
practices adopted in the preparation of public financial information
and examining all documents representing the final Financial
Statements.
The introduction of a self certification programme that requires the
Chief Financial Officer and Head of Finance of the sector to confirm
compliance, on a quarterly basis, with statutory requirements and
key control procedures and to identify any deviations from the set
requirements has significantly re-enforced the Committee’s efforts
in these respects.
The Audit Committee had four meetings during the year and
attendance of the Audit Committee members are indicated in the
Audit Committee Report on page 44.
The President / CEO, CFO, the Head of Finance and other operational
heads are invited to the meetings of the Audit Committee. The
detailed Audit committee report including areas reviewed during the
financial year 2009/2010 is given on page 44 of the Annual Report.

Going concern and financial reporting
The Directors are satisfied that the Company and the Subsidiaries
have sufficient resources to continue in operation for the
foreseeable future. In the unlikely event that the net assets of the
Company fall below a half of shareholders funds, shareholders would
be notified and an Extraordinary General Meeting called up to pass a
resolution on the proposed way forward.
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The going concern principle has been adopted in preparing the
Financial Statements. All statutory and material declarations are
highlighted in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors in the
Annual Report. Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS), including all the new
standards introduced during the subject year.

The Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in relation to financial
reporting is given in the Financial Reports section of the Annual
Report. The directors’ interests in contracts of the Company are
addressed in the Annual Report of the Board of Directors.








The Directors have taken all reasonable steps in ensuring the
accuracy and timeliness of published information and in presenting
an honest and balanced assessment of results in the quarterly
and annual Financial Statements. As discussed in the shareholder
relations section of this note, all price sensitive information has been
made known to the Colombo Stock Exchange, shareholders and the
press in a timely manner and in keeping with the regulations.
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The key principles underlying the remuneration policy of the group
are as follows:


Information in the Financial Statements of the Annual Report are
supplemented by a detailed ‘Management Discussion and Analysis’
which explains to shareholders the strategic, operational, investment
and risk related aspects of the Company that have translated in to
the reported financial performance and are likely to influence future
results.

Annual Report 2009 - 2010



All executive roles across the JKH Group have been banded by
an independent third party on the basis of the relative worth
of jobs.
Compensation be set at levels that are competitive to enable
the recruitment and the retention of high caliber executives
in the identified job classes/bands – as guided by the best
comparator set of companies (from Sri Lanka and the region,
where relevant)
Compensation, comprising of fixed (base) payments, short term
incentives and long term incentives be tied to performance,
both individual and organisational.
Performance be measured annually on well-defined objectives
and metrices at each level- individual, business and group,
thereby aligning shareholder interests through well established
performance management system.
The more senior the level of management, the higher the
proportion of the incentive component, thereby lower
the proportion of the fixed (base) component of total
compensation.
As the seniority, and therefore the decision influencing
capability of the position on organisational results, increases,
the individual performance to hold lesser weightage than
the organisational performance when determining total
compensation and incentives.

Remuneration Committee and Policy
The Remuneration Committee of the Parent Company John Keells
Holding PLC functions as the Remuneration Committee of the
Company and conforms to the requirements of the Listing Rules of
the Colombo Stock Exchange.

The aggregate amount paid to the Executive and the Non Executive
Directors are disclosed in note number 24 of the Notes to the
Accounts.

Risk Review and Internal Control
The Remuneration Committee of the parent Company consists of
three Non Executive Independent Directors.
Name of Members
Mr. Franklyn Amerasinghe - Chairman
Mrs. S. Tiruchelvam
Mr. D. Rodrigo
The remuneration policy of the Group is formulated to attract and
retain high calibre executives and motivate them to develop and
implement the business strategy in order to optimise long term
Shareholder value creation.

The Company also adopts the parent Company’s Risk Management
Programme which is given on page 34 to 36 manage the significant
risks. The significant Business Risks to the Group which could
undermine the achievement of the Group’s business objectives are
identified and risk owners are appointed to mitigate these risks.
The Company and the Subsidiary has outsourced the internal
audit functions to Messers Ernst & Young Advisory Services (Pvt)
Limited an affiliate of Messers. Ernst & Young, a firm of Chartered
Accountants. The audit plan includes continuous review of the
Groups internal systems and controls that have been designed to
safeguard the Groups assets, maintain proper accounting records
and provide management information and whether these are in
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place and are functioning according to expectations. The reports
arising out of such audits are, in the first instance, considered and
discussed at the business/ functional unit levels and after review
by the President / CEO are forwarded to the Audit Committee on a
regular basis.

Company Secretary

Compliance with Legal Requirements

Code of Conduct

The Board is conscious of its responsibility to the Shareholders,
the Government and the Society in which it operates and is
unequivocally committed to upholding ethical behaviour in
conducting its’ business. The Board strives to ensure that the
Company complies with the laws and regulations of the Country.

John Keells Holdings PLC, the Parent Company of the Group has
established a ‘code of conduct’ for all employees of the John Keells
Group.

The Board of Directors have also taken all reasonable steps to
ensure that all Financial Statements are prepared in accordance
with the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, the requirements of the
Colombo Stock Exchange and other applicable authorities The
Directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources to
continue in operation for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the
going concern principle has been adopted in preparing the Financial
Statements.
The Sri Lanka Accounting Standards as set by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants are those which govern the preparation of
the Financial Statements. The International Accounting Standards
are used in the rare instance where a Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards does not exist. The Board is aware of the growing
importance of the disclosure of critical accounting policies as a
part of corporate governance and are of the opinion that there
are no instances where the use of such a concept would have
had a material impact on the Company’s and the Group’s financial
performance.

Relations with Shareholders
Shareholders will have the opportunity at the forthcoming AGM,
notice of which has been communicated to you, to put questions to
the Board and to the Chairman. The contents of the Annual Report
will enable existing and prospective stakeholders to make better
informed decisions in their dealings with the Company.

Enterprise
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Keells Consultants Limited, act as secretary to the Company and is
qualified to act as such as per the provisions of the Company’s Act
No.7 of 2007. The services and advice of the Company Secretary is
made available to the Directors as necessary.

This ‘Code of Conduct’ has been formally communicated to all
employees and is now a component of the employee self service
portals and is based on four basic principles namely 




The allegiance to the Company and the Group
The compliance with rules and regulations applying in the
territories that the group operates in
The conduct of business in an ethical manner at all times and
in keeping with acceptable business practices
The exercise of professionalism and integrity in all business
and ‘public’ personal transactions

The above principles encapsulates areas such as fair dealing,
conflict of interest, confidentiality and insider information, gifts and
entertainment, compliance with the law and behaviour in public.
The employees are expected to adhere to the code in the
performance in their official duties and in other situations that could
affect the Group’s image and are expected to entrench the expected
behaviour at all levels in the organisation through communication
and role modeling.
The Chairman of the Board affirms that there has not been any
material violation of any of the provisions of the code of conduct
aforementioned during the year under review.

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC |

Annual Report 2009 - 2010

31

Levels of Compliance with the Colombo Stock Exchange’s new Listing Rules - Section 7.10, Rules on Corporate Governance.
Rule No.

Subject

Applicable requirement

Compliance
Status

Details

7.10.1(a)

Non Executive
Directors

Two or at least one third of the total
number of Directors should be NonExecutive Directors.

Compliant

As at the conclusion of the immediately
preceding AGM Six out of Seven Directors
were Non-Executive Directors. As at 31st
March, 2010 Six out of Seven Directors are
Non- Executive Directors.

7.10.2(a)

Independent
Directors

Two or one third of
Non-Executive Directors, whichever is
higher, should be independent.

Compliant

As at the conclusion of the immediately
preceding AGM, Three of the Six NonExecutive Directors were independent. As at
31st March, 2010 Three of Six Non- Executive
Directors are Independent.

7.10.2(b)

Independent
Directors

Each Non-Executive Director should
submit a declaration of independence
/ non-independence in the prescribed
format.

Compliant

Please refer page 26.

7.10.3(a)

Disclosure relating
to Directors

The Board shall annually make a
determination as to the independence
or otherwise of the Non-Executive
Directors and names of Independent
Directors should be disclosed in the
Annual Report.

Compliant

Please refer page 26 and 27.

7.10.3(b)

Disclosure relating
to Directors

The basis for the Board to determine
a Director is Independent, if criteria
specified for Independence is not met.

Compliant

The Board has determined that only Three of
the Non Executive Directors out of the Six
satisfy the criteria for “independence” as set
out in the Listing Rules.

7.10.3(c)

Disclosure relating
to Directors

A brief resume of each Director should
be included in the Annual Report and
should include the Directors areas of
expertise.

Compliant

Please refer page 18 to 19.

7.10.3(d)

Disclosure relating
to Directors

Forthwith provide a brief resume of new
Directors appointed to the Board with
details specified in 7.10.3(a), (b) and (c)
to the Exchange.

Compliant

No new Director was appointed during the
year.

7.10.5

Remuneration
Committee

A listed Company shall have a
Remuneration Committee.

Compliant

The Remuneration Committee of the parent
Company John Keells Holdings PLC acts as the
remuneration committee of the Company and
the subsidiary Company as permitted by the
Listing Rules.
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Rule No.

Subject

Applicable requirement

Compliance
Status

Details

7.10.5(a)

Composition of
Remuneration
Committee

Shall comprise of Non – Executive
Directors a majority of whom will be
Independent.

Compliant

The Committee consists of three Non
Executive Directors all of whom are
Independent.

7.10.5.(b)

Functions of
Remuneration
Committee

The Remuneration Committee shall
recommend the remuneration of the
Chief Executive Officer and Executive
Directors.

Compliant

Please refer the Remuneration Policy as set
out on page 29 of this Report.

7.10.5.(c)

Disclosure in
the Annual
Report relating
to Remuneration
Committee

The Annual Report should set out,
a.
Names of Directors comprising the
Remuneration Committee
b.
Statement of Remuneration Policy
c.
Aggregated remuneration paid to
Executive and Non – Executive
Directors

Compliant

Please refer page 29.

Compliant
Compliant

Please refer page 29.
Please refer page 69.

7.10.6

Audit Committee

The Company shall have an Audit
Committee.

7.10.6(a)

Composition of
Audit Committee

Shall comprise of
a.
Non – Executive Directors
a majority of whom will be
Independent.

Compliant

Compliant

The Audit Committee consists only of
Independent Non–Executive Directors

b.

A Non – Executive Director shall
be appointed as the Chairman of
the Committee.

Compliant

Chairman of the Audit Committee is an
Independent Non–Executive Director.

c.

Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer should attend
Audit Committee Meetings.

Compliant

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief
Financial Officer attends meetings by
invitation.

d.

The Chairman of the Audit
Committee or one member should
be a member of a professional
accounting body.

Compliant

The Chairman of the Audit Committee is a
Chartered Accountant.

Enterprise
Governance
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Rule No.

Subject

Applicable requirement

7.10.6(b)

Audit Committee
Functions

Functions shall include;
a.
Overseeing of the preparation,
presentation and adequacy
of disclosures in the Financial
Statements in accordance with Sri
Lanka Accounting Standards.
b.
Overseeing of the compliance with
financial reporting requirements,
information requirements of
the Companies Act and other
relevant financial reporting related
regulations and requirements.
c.
Overseeing the processes to
ensure that the internal controls
and risk management are adequate
to meet the requirements of the
Sri Lanka Auditing Standards.
d.
Assessment of the independence
and performance of the external
auditors.
e.
Make recommendations to the
Board pertaining to appointment,
re-appointment and removal of
external auditors, and approve
the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external
auditors.

7.10.6(c)

Disclosure in
Annual Report
relating to Audit
Committee

Compliance
Status

Compliant

Compliant

a.

Names of Directors comprising the
Audit Committee.

b.

The Audit Committee shall make a Compliant
determination of the independence
of the Auditors and disclose the
basis for such determination.

c.

The Annual Report shall contain
a Report of the Audit Committee
setting out of the manner of
compliance with their functions.

Compliant
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Details

The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee have been agreed by the Board.

Please refer page 44.

Please refer Audit Committee Report on page
45.

Please refer Audit Committee Report on pages
44 to 45.
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Introduction

Risk Management Process

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC and its subsidiary Jaykay Marketing Services
(Pvt) Ltd are exposed to various forms of industrial, operational,
environmental and financial risk arising from transactions entered
into and the economic environment within which it operates. The
identification of such risks and the implementation of appropriate
strategies to manage such risks forms part of our business
processors. The objective of the business risk management
strategy at Ceylon Cold Stores PLC and its Subsidiary is to improve
performance and decision making through the identification,
evaluation, management and monitoring of key risks.

The risk management process has been designed to ensure
identification of any event, situation or circumstances that would
adversely effect the achievement of Company objectives and to
accept and manage unavoidable risks and to ensure surprise events
or situations are minimised. This process is aligned directly in to
Company strategy, annual plans and audit committee process. The
risk management process is outlined as follows:
Risk Identification – This part of the process will identify the
events or scenarios that could prevent the Company from achieving
its set objectives.

The Company and the Subsidiary have adopted the John Keells
Group risk management strategy which is an on going process of
identifying risk (Risk Mapping), measuring its potential impact and
likelihood thereof against a broad set of assumptions (Risk Action/
Decisions), establishing unacceptable exposures and initiating
mitigating activities to reduce exposure to within tolerance levels
(Risk Control Strategies).

John Keells
Risk Universe
Headline
Risks

External
Environment

Layer 4

Layer 3

Business
Strategies &
Policies

Risk Assessment and Evaluation – This is where it is determined
whether the risk will have an ultra-high, high, moderate, low or
insignificant impact on the operations of the Company. Also the
likelihood of risk occurrence based on past experience as well as
future projections is assessed. The Group Risk Management teams
along with the Company functional and operational managers carry
out the risk assessment and evaluation process.

Business
Process

JKH PLC Audit Committee
Group Executive Committee (GEC)
Group Operating Committee (GOC)

Layer 2

Sector Committee
Listed Company Audit Committee

Layer 1

Risk
Management

Business Unit

Organisation
& People

Analysis &
Reporting

JK Group Review
Risk Report &
Action
BU Review &
Sector Risk
Report & Action

BU Risk Report
& Action

Report Content

Technology &
Data
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Risk Mitigation Action plans – Identified and evaluated risks
are assigned to risk owners. Risk mitigation action plans will be
developed with timelines for implementation by the risk owners
along with the management of the Company. When the action plans
are formulated accepting and managing risk, transferring the risk
to a third party, elimination of the risk by adopting an exit strategy,
building controls into process to reduce risk, sharing the risk with
another party, and insuring against risks are considered.

has been significant price volatility in the world market in respect
of certain key ingredients. We have mitigated some of the risks
associated with price volatility as well as availability by entering
into long term forward price agreements for key ingredients and
substitute where possible with local materials without compromising
quality. Further we have built a strong relationship with farmer
community and other local suppliers through the CSR initiatives to
ensure continuous supply at stable price levels.

Monitoring – On a quarterly basis the risk mitigation actions plans
will be monitored and reported to the management committee as
well as the audit committee of the Company.

Supplier Stability and Consistent Quality of Raw
Materials

The risk management process is reviewed by the Risk Management
Team of the Company, headed by the President - CEO and comprises
of functional and operational managers.
The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is the prime mover
in setting up policy and the monitoring of effective implementation
of set policies on behalf of the Board. The significant risk areas
that impact the achievement of the Company’s strategic business
objectives and the measures taken to address these risks are given
below;

The Company depends on few suppliers for some of the key raw
materials due to the cost advantage and easy of supply. Any
adverse impact on the sustainability of these suppliers will create a
disturbance to the manufacturing process. We have evaluated the
alternate suppliers and are in the process of diluting the dependency
on key suppliers whilst managing the cost impact optimally. The
Company also regularly conducts supplier audits to ensure that the
raw materials comply with stipulated standards. We also encourage
and assist the suppliers to obtain ISO / HACCP certification and the
Company gives the preference to the suppliers who have obtained
such standards.

Stability of Distribution Channels
Brand and Company Product Portfolio
Products manufactured and sold by the Company have a leading
house hold brand name with high brand equity. Therefore, it must
be managed and protected to survive and prosper in the years to
come. The irreparable damage done to the brand following a crisis
or catastrophe may substantially out-way the immediate and
visible costs. The strategies used to manage brand risks include
quantitative and qualitative tools, including market intelligence and
competitive intelligence management systems, with a focus on
negating potential risk factors, as well as developed proactive risk
management practices for our brands.

Competitor activity and demand for Company products
The Company faces stiff competition from other producers of thirst
quenchers and frozen confectionery manufacturers. The Company
has formulated a basis on which the Company competes with such
producers which revolve mainly on Brand identification, product
portfolio, availability, communication, quality and distribution.

Price Volatility of Raw Materials
The Company’s manufacturing costs are largely dependant upon
the cost of raw materials sourced. Over the last few years there

Stability of distribution channels largely depend on the viability and
consistent performance of our distributors. It is extremely important
to ensure the continued services of the distributors to deliver the
Company products to end consumers. The Company has a stringent
process for selection of distributors and monitors the distributor
performance on an on going basis and guide and supports them to
ensure the viability and growth of their business.

Human Resources
Key HR areas ranging from recruitment and selection, career
management, performance management, training and development,
competency frameworks and coaching skills to talent appreciation,
reward and recognition and compensation and benefits have been
reviewed and revised to modern standards.
The Company has approximately 900 employees in its cadre and
500 of the staff are represented by unions. A deterioration of
labour relations or a significant increase in labour costs would have
a significant impact on Company’s results. With a view to addressing
the above concerns, key HR areas ranging from performance
management, training and development, coaching and mentoring
skills to reward and recognition and compensation and benefits have
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all been reviewed and revised in keeping with modern trends and
methodologies. The Company maintains a dialogue, on a proactive
basis with unionised employees to maintain cordial industrial
relations.

Vulnerabilities from IT Related Risks
Dedicated professionals and use of appropriate software ensures
continuity of business operations and safeguard from IT related risks
including the setting up of early warning mechanisms to mitigate
possible infrastructure failure.

Exposure to Credit Facilities
Credit facilities are offered to Company’s customers in keeping
with the business environment. This may expose the Company to
default of payments. The Company mitigates such risk by offering
credit within set limits following an evaluation of creditworthiness
together with measures to adequately safeguard exposures with
sufficient asset backed securities.

Liquidity

Reliance on Effective Internal Controls

Ensure Compliance Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Segregation of duties, definition of authority limits, operating
manuals, detective and preventive controls and internal and external
audit procedures which are independent of each other enable the
management to ensure that the operations are being carried out as
per laid down procedures.

Compliance Risk is managed through the use of legal advice
from appropriately qualified and experienced legal professionals
supplemented by the JKH legal team. We have put in place periodic
reporting of compliance by the respective Functional Managers.
Ad hoc Taxes on Raw Materials, Production, Operating Costs
The Company has identified retro active taxes to be a major concern
and this is been addressed by lobbying with the Government
and other regulatory authorities to ensure consistent policies are
followed.

Meeting Quality Expectations
The food manufacturing industry is subject to general risks of food
spoilage or contamination, consumer preferences with respect to
nutrition and health related concerns, governmental regulations,
consumer liability claims etc. Our quality assurance system
administered by qualified specialists using international benchmarks
considers all continuous product and process innovations necessary
to maintain the Company’s competitive edge and avoid any
regulatory, health and nutrition related concerns. Company’s risk
management strategy has identified such risks and set in motion an
action plan to mitigate the results of such risks. Towards addressing
nutritional concerns the Company has a food nutritionist validating
all products nutritional standards. With respect to Governmental
regulations, the Company ensures only ingredients that satisfy
international standards are used in its product formulation. The
Company also ensures compliance to the quality certifications of
HACCP manufacturing practices with the conduct of regular internal
and external audits as applicable to the industries and product lines
we operate in.

Risk
Management

Exposure to liquidity risk arises in the general funding of the
companies business activities and includes the risk of being unable
to fund the business activities in a timely manner. The Company
managers its liquidity risk by marinating sufficient cash and available
funding through unutilised credit facilities from various banks.

Changes in Interest and Foreign Exchange Rates
The Company’s policy is to manage its interest rate risk using a mix
of fixed and variable rate debt taking advantage of the changes in
the market rates. Guidance received from Group Treasury division
with respect to forecasting of exchange rates, interest rates etc has
been of immense value in management of this risk exposure.

Company’s foreign operations
The Company markets its products internationally. These
international sales are subject to compliance with foreign laws and
other economic and political uncertainties, trade barriers and other
restrictions. All of these risks could result in increased costs which
would affect the Company. We have set in motion a process to
identify specific risks, and wherever risks are identified appropriate
corrective action to be taken.
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Annual Report of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC have pleasure in
presenting their Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC and the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements of the Group for the year ended 31st March
2010.
The content of this Report has also considered the requirements
of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007, the relevant Listing Rules of
the Colombo Stock Exchange and recommended best reporting
practices.

General
The Company was incorporated in 1866 as the Colombo Ice
Company Limited as a limited liability Company and in 1941 changed
its name to Ceylon Cold Stores Limited. The Company was quoted
in the Colombo Stock Exchange in January 1970. Pursuant to
the requirements of the new Companies Act No.7 of 2007, the
Company was re-registered and obtained a new Company number
PQ4 on 15 June 2007.

Financial Statements
The Financial Statements of the Group and the Company are set out
on pages 48 to 74 to of the Annual Report.

Auditors’ Report
The Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements is given on page
47 of the Annual Report.

Going Concern
The Board of Directors is satisfied that the Company and its
Subsidiaries have adequate resources to continue its operations in
the foreseeable future. Accordingly the Financial Statements are
prepared based on the “going concern concept”.

Stated Capital
The total Stated Capital of the Company as at 31 March 2010
was Rs. 270.2 Million (2008/2009 - Rs. 270.2 Million ). The Stated
Capital of the Company comprises of 21,600,000 Ordinary Shares
fully paid up and 25,000 Preference Shares fully paid up.

Corporate Conduct and the Vision of the Company

Significant Accounting Policies

The business activities of the Company are conducted with the
highest level of ethical standards in achieving the Company’s vision.
The Company’s vision is given on the page 3 of the Annual Report.

The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of Financial
Statements are given on pages 53 to 59 of the Annual Report.
There were no changes in the accounting policies adopted in the
previous year for the Company or the Group.

Principal Activity
Company
The principal activities of the Company remained unchanged as
manufacture and marketing of Beverages and Frozen Confectionery.
Subsidiaries
The principal activity of Jaykay Marketing (Pvt) Limited, a 100%
owned subsidiary remained unchanged as that of owning and
operating of a chain of supermarkets under the name of “Keells
Super”, whilst Elephant House Farms (Pvt) Limited a 100%
subsidiary remained as non operating Company.

Business Review
A review of the Group’s performance during the financial year is
given in the Chairman’s Review, and the Management Discussion
and Analysis Review. These reports form an integral part of the
Directors Report and provide a fair review of the performance of the
Group during the financial year ended 31 March 2010.

Future Developments
The Chairman’s review and the Management Discussion and
Analysis provide a review of the future developments of the
Company and Its Subsidiary under the section referred as “Outlook”.

Revenue
The Net Revenue generated by the Company amounted to Rs.
5.3 Billion (2008/2009 Rs. 5 Billion), whilst the Consolidated Net
Revenue of the Group amounted to Rs. 14.4 Billion (2008/2009
Rs. 12.7 Billion). An analysis of revenue is given in Note 20 to the
Financial Statements.

Results and Appropriations
The Profit after Tax of the Company was Rs.280 Million
(2008/2009 Rs. 243.2 Million), whilst the Group Profit attributable
to Shareholders for the year was Rs228.8 Million (2008/2009 Rs.
139.6 Million).
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Detailed description of the Results and Appropriations of the Group are given below.

Result and Appropriations			
Group
For the year ended 31 March
Profit earned before interest after providing for all known liabilities,
bad and doubtful debts and depreciation on Property, Plant & Equipment
Finance Expenses
Profit before Taxation
Tax Expenses
Profit after Taxation
Balance brought forward from the previous year
Amount available for appropriations
Ordinary Dividend paid
Preference Dividend Paid
Balance carried forward

Taxation
Provision for taxation has been computed at the rates given in Note
25 to the Financial Statements.

2010
Rs.000

2009
Rs.000

541,864
(121,713)
420,151
(191,277)
228,874
422,902
651,776
(86,400)
(14)
565,362

460,951
(192,606)
268,345
(128,731)
139,614
304,902
444,516
(21,600)
(14)
422,902

The dividends paid out are out of taxable profits of the Company
and will be subjected to a 10% withholding tax.

Property, Plant & Equipment,
Segment Reporting
A segmental analysis of the activities of the Group is given in Note
20.3 and 20.4 to the Financial Statements.

Corporate Donations
During the year the Group made donations amounting to Rs. 5
Million (2008/2009 – Rs. 2.5 Million). The donations made to
Government approved charities from above amounted to Rs. 4.35
million (2008/2009 – Rs. 0.15 Million). The Group makes no political
donations.

Dividends
The Directors have declared a first and final dividend of Rs. 4.00
per share for the year ended 31st March 2010, from the profits
available for appropriation The total dividend pay out amounts to
Rs. 86.4 Million. In accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards
No 12 (Revised), Events after the Balance Sheet date, the declared
dividend has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2010.

Capital expenditure on Property, Plant & Equipment and Capital
Work-In-Progress of the Group amounted to Rs.253Million
(2008/2009 Rs.454 Million). Details of and the movement in the
Property, Plant and Equipment of the Group is given in Note 1 to the
Financial Statements.

Market Value of Property
The Land and Buildings owned by the Company were re-valued by
a professionally qualified independent valuer as at 31 March 2008.
The Directors are of the opinion that the re-valued amounts are
not in excess of the current market values of such properties. The
details of the re-valued land and buildings of the Company are given
in Note 1.2 to the Financial Statements.

Fully Depreciated Assets
The details of the fully depreciated assets is given on Note 1.3 to
the Financial Statements.

Investments
As required by Section 56 (2) of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007,
the Board of Directors have confirmed that the Company satisfies
the Solvency Test in accordance with section 57 of Companies Act
No 7 of 2007 and have obtained a certificate from the Auditors
prior to declaring the first and final dividend of Rs. 4.00 per share for
the year.

Investments of the Company amounted to Rs. 523 Million
(2008/2009 Rs. 526 Million) Detailed description of the long term
investments held as at the Balance Sheet date is given in Note 3 to
the Financial Statements.
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Reserves

Risk Management

Total reserves as at 31st March 2010 for the Company and Group
amounted to Rs. 2,526 Million (2008/2009 Rs. 2,333 Million)
and Rs. 2,367 Million (2008/2009 Rs. 2,225 Million) respectively.
The detailed movement of reserves are given in the Statement of
Changes in Equity on page 50 of the Annual Report.

The Group Policy on Risk Management and a summary of the key
risks impacting the business is set out on pages 34 to 36 of the
Annual Report.

Post Balance Sheet Events
Events occuring after the Balance Sheet Date is given in Note 31 to
the Financial Statements.

Audit Committee
The following Non-Executive, Independent Directors of the Board
served as members of the Audit Committee during the year

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

Mr. A. R. Rasiah - Chairman
Mr. P. S. Jayawardena
Dr. U. P. Liyanage

There were no material Contingent liabilities or Capital commitments
as at 31 March 2010 except disclosed in Note 29 and 30 to the
Financial Statements.

The report of the Audit Committee is given on pages 44 to 45 of
the Annual Report.

Human Resources
Ceylon Cold Stores PLC, and its Subsidiaries employed a total of
2,532 persons at 31st March 2010 (31st March 2009 - 2,542)
The Group is committed to pursuing various HR initiatives that
ensure the individual development of all our team as well as
facilitating the creation of value for themselves, the Company and
all other stakeholders.
There were no material issues pertaining to employees and
industrial relations during the year under review.

System of Internal Controls
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the Group’s
systems of Internal Control and having conducted a review of
internal controls covering financial, operational, compliance controls
and risk management, have obtained reasonable assurance of their
effectiveness and successful adherence for the period up to the
date of signing the Financial Statements.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the other services provided
by the External Auditors to the Group to ensure that their
independence as Auditor has not been compromised.

Remuneration Committee
As permitted by the Listing Rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange,
the Remuneration Committee of John Keells Holdings PLC, the parent
Company of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC, functions as the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. The Remuneration Committee of John
Keells Holdings PLC comprises of three Independent Non Executive
Directors:
Mr. E. F. G. Amerasinghe - Chairman
Mrs. S. Tiruchelvam
Mr. P. D. Rodrigo
The remuneration policy of the Company is set out in the Corporate
Governance section in the Annual Report.

Share Market Information
Enterprise Governance
Enterprise Governance practices and principles with respect to the
management and operations of the Group is set out on pages 26
to 33 of the Annual Report. The Directors confirm that the Group is
in compliance with the Rules on Corporate Governance as per the
listing rules of Colombo Stock Exchange.

An Ordinary Share of the Company was quoted on the Colombo
Stock exchange at Rs. 172.00 as at 31st March 2010 ( 31st March
2009 - Rs.69.50). Information relating to earnings, dividends, net
assets and market value per share is given in “Key Figures and
Ratios” on page 78 and in the “Your Share in Detail” on page
75 to 76.

The Directors declare that:

Shareholding and Substantial Shareholdings






The Company and the Subsidiary Companies have not engaged
in any activities, which contravene laws and regulations
The Directors have declared all material interests in contracts
involving the Company and refrained from voting on matters in
which they were materially involved.
The Company has made all endeavours to ensure the equitable
treatment of all shareholders.

There were 1,623 registered shareholders, holding ordinary voting
shares as at 31st March 2010. The distribution of shareholding is
given on page 75 of this report. The names of the twenty largest
shareholders, the number of shares held and the percentage held are
given on page 76 of the Annual Report.

42

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC |

Annual Report 2009 - 2010

Annual Report of the Board of Directors
Directorate

Interest Register

The Board of Directors of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC who served during
the year and as at the end of the Financial Year are given below and
their brief profiles appear on pages 18 to 19 of the Annual Report.
No other Director held office during the period under review.

The Company has maintained an Interests Register as contemplated
by the Companies Act No 7 of 2007.

Mr. S. C. Ratnayake (Chairman)
Mr. A. D. Gunewardene
Mr. J. R. F. Peiris
Mr. J. R. Gunaratne
Dr. U. P. Liyanage
Mr. P. S. Jayawardena
Mr. A. R. Rasiah

(Non –Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Non independent)
(Executive - Non independent)
(Non - Executive, Independent)
(Non - Executive, Independent)
(Non - Executive, Independent)

In compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No 7 of
2007 this Annual Report contains particulars of entries made in the
Interests Register. As the Subsidiaries of the Company are Private
Companies which have disapplied the need to maintain an Interests
Register, this Annual Report does not contain the particulars of
entries made in the Interests Register of Subsidiaries.
Particulars of Entries in the Interests Register for the Financial Year
2009/10

The Board of Directors of Jaykay Marketing Services (Private) Limited
who served during the year and as at the end of the Financial Year
are given below. No other Director held office during the period
under review.

a)

Interests in Contracts – The Directors have all made a General
Disclosure to the Board of Directors as permitted by Section
192 (2) of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007 and no additional
interests have been disclosed by any Director

Mr. S. C. Ratnayake (Chairman)
Mr. J. R. F. Peiris
Mr. K. N. J. Balendra
Ms. M. R. N. Jayasundera Moreas

b)

Share Dealings: There have been no disclosures of share
dealings as at 31st March 2010

c)

Indemnities and Remuneration
The Board approved payments to the Executive Directors of
the Company, namely Mr. J R Gunaratne for the period 01st
April 2009 to 31st March 2010, comprising of

(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Non - Executive, Non Independent)
(Executive - Non Independent)

Directors’ Shareholdings
Shareholdings of Directors of the Company and of their spouses in
the Company are as follows:
		
Number of Shares
Name of the Director
31/03/2010 31/03/2009
Mr. Susantha Chaminda Ratnayake
Mr. Ajit Damon Gunewardene
Mr. James Ronnie Felitus Peiris
Mr. Jitendra Romesh Gunaratne - CEO
Dr. Uditha Pilane Liyanage
Mr. Prasanna Sujeewa Jayawardena
Mr. Albert Rasakantha Rasiah

760
7,000
150
1,140
300
300
2,900
12,550

760
7,000
150
1,140
300
300
2,900
12,550





Short term variable incentives based on individual
performance organisation performance and role
responsibility based on the results of the financial year
2008/2009, paid in July 2009;
Long Term Incentive in the nature of ESOP in John Keells
Holdings PLC dependant on the aforesaid performance
rating, organisational rating and role responsibility.

as recommended by the Remuneration Committee of John Keells
Holdings PLC the holding company of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC in
keeping with the Group remuneration policy

Suppliers
Retirement of Directors by rotation or otherwise and
their Re-election
Mr P S Jayawardena and Mr. A D Gunewardene retire by rotation in
terms of Article 84 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
and being eligible offer themselves for re-election.

Directors Remuneration
The details of fees paid to the Directors and those of the
Subsidiaries are set out in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.

The Group endeavours to transact business with reputed
organisations capable of offering quality goods and services at
competitive prices with a view to building mutually beneficial
business relationships.

Statutory payments
The Directors confirm to the best of their knowledge all taxes,
duties and levies payable by the Group and all contributions, levies
and taxes payable on behalf of and in respect of the employees
of the Group and all other known statutory dues as were due and
payable by Group as at the Balance Sheet date have been paid or
where relevant provided for.
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Environment Protection
The Company is conscious of the impact, direct and indirect, on
the environment due to its business activities. Every endeavour is
made to minimize the adverse effects on the environment to ensure
sustainable continuity of our resources.

Auditors

As far as the Directors are aware, neither the outgoing nor the
recommended Auditors have any other relationship with the
Company and its Subsidiaries.

Notice of Meeting
The Notice of Meeting relating to 113th Annual General Meeting is
given on page 80 of the Annual Report.

The Financial Statements for the year have been audited by
Messers. KPMG Ford Rhodes Thornton & Company, Chartered
Accountants, who are the retiring Auditors.
During the year, in a bid to adopt current and emerging best
practices in external audits within the greater goal of enhancing our
Corporate Governance, a review of External Auditors and the scoping
of their services was undertaken by your Company. A Request for
proposals process was initiated in order to select a Group Auditor
having sufficient audit coverage.
Proposals were invited from Audit Firms with international
affiliation / representation. All proposals received were evaluated
by a Technical Committee (TEC). The recommendations of the TEC
were reviewed by a steering committee comprising of a majority
of independent, non executive directors representing John Keells
Holdings PLC and other Listed Companies in the John Keells Group.
Further to such evaluation, your Board of Directors have resolved to
recommend to the shareholders to appoint Messers. Ernst & Young
– Chartered Accountants as the External Auditors of the Company
from the Financial year 2010/11 with effect from the date of the
Annual General Meeting.
In terms of the requirements of Section 161(1) of the Companies
Act No. 7 of 2007 the outgoing auditors Messers. KPMG Ford
Rhodes Thornton & Company, Chartered Accountants, have
confirmed in writing to the Board of Directors, the shareholders and
other stakeholders that there are no circumstances connected with
them ceasing to hold office as Auditors which need to be brought to
the attention of the Director, Shareholders and other stake holders.
The details of fees paid to the outgoing Auditors for the Company
and its Subsidiaries are set out in Note 24 to the Financial
Statements.

J. R. Gunaratne
J. R. F. Peiris
Director
Director
		
19th May 2010

Keells Consultants
Limited
Secretaries
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Audit Committee Report
The Audit Committee is tasked with the responsibility of assisting
the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility to the shareholders
and other stakeholders in relation to the integrity of the Company’s
financial reporting process and that the process is in accordance
with the Company’s Act and other legislative reporting requirements.
Furthermore the audit committee also ensures that adequate
disclosures are made in the Financial Statements in accordance with
the Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.












Summary of Activities during the Financial Year
The Audit Committee during the year in addition to carrying out its
duties under the terms of reference also reviewed and discussed
reports and updates as provided by the Internal Auditors and
External Auditors.



Mr. A. R. Rasiah

Y

Y

Y

Y

Dr. U. P. Liyanage

Y

Y

N

Y

Mr. P. S. Jayawardena

Y

Y

Y

Y

Mr. A. R. Rasiah – Chairman
Dr. U. P. Liyanage
Mr. P. S. Jayawardena

The audit committee comprises of individuals of extensive
experience and expertise in the fields of Finance, Corporate
Management, Legal and Marketing. The Chairman of the Audit
Committee is a Chartered Accountant. A brief profile of each
member of the audit committee is given on page 19 of the Annual
Report under the section Board of Directors.



Attendance at Audit Committee Meetings
22nd January ‘10

The Audit Committee is a sub committee of the Board of Directors
appointed by and responsible to the Board of Directors. The Audit
Committee consists of three independent, non-executive Directors
in conformity with the listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange.

The Executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer and the Head
of Finance attended by invitation and briefed the committee on
specific issues. The External Auditors and the Internal Auditors were
also invited to attend meetings when matters pertaining to their
functions came up for consideration. The proceeding of the Audit
Committee, are reported to the Board of Directors by the Chairman
of the Audit Committee.

23rd October ‘09

Composition of the Audit Committee

The Committee meets as often as may be deemed necessary or
appropriate in its judgment, and at least quarterly each year. During
the year under review there were four meetings and attendance of
the committee members are given below.

28th July’09

The Committee evaluates the performance and the independence
of the Company’s internal audit function and the Company’s external
Auditors. The committee is also tasked with the responsibility of
recommending to the Board the re-appointment and change of
external auditors and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditors.

Meetings of Audit Committee

28th April ‘09

The audit committee also has responsibility to ensure that the
internal controls and the risk management process are adequate
to meet the requirements of the Sri Lanka Auditing Standards and
that the Company is in compliance with legal, regulatory and ethical
requirements.

Reviewed and recommended for Board approval the quarterly
announcement of financial results of the Company and the
Group.
Reviewed the quarterly Financial compliance statement
submitted by Head of Finance and Operational Compliance
statements submitted by Heads of Operations.
Review of Risk Management Reports on significant exposures
and risk mitigation plans.
Deliberate on improvements to internal control processes and
adequacy of content and quality of management information
reports submitted.

Reviewed quarterly internal audit reports submitted by the
Internal Auditor.
Reviewed the progress of management actions to resolve
significant internal control issues as highlighted by the internal
and external auditors.

Attendance of the Audit
Committee Meetings

Internal Audit
The internal audit function has been outsourced to Ernst & Young
Advisory Services (Pvt) Limited an affiliate of Messers. Ernst &
Young, a firm of Chartered Accountants. The Audit Committee has
agreed with the internal auditor as to the frequency of audits to be
carried out, the scope of the audit and the areas to be covered and
the fee to be paid for their services.
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Audit Committee Report
During the year under review, the following areas were covered by
Internal Auditors:








Review of internal controls
Operational risks
Business risks
Compliance with statutory requirements
Non-compliance with Company policies
Identification of inefficiencies and proposals for remedial
action
Review and report on significant increase in costs

The internal audit frequency depends on the risk profile of each
area, higher risk areas being on a shorter audit cycle. The audit
committee is of the opinion that the above approach provides an
optimal balance between the need to manage risk and the costs
thereof. Follow up reviews by the internal auditors are undertaken to
ensure that audit recommendations are being implemented.

External Audit
The external auditors of the Company submitted a detailed audit
plan for the financial year 2009/2010, which specified, inter alia,
the areas of operations to be covered in respect of the Company.
The audit plan specified ‘areas of special emphasis’ which had
been identified from the last audit or from a review of current
operations. The areas of special emphasis had been selected due to
the probability of error and the material impact it can have on the
Financial Statements. At the conclusion of the audit, the auditors
met with the Audit Committee to discuss and agree the treatment
of any matters of concern discovered in the course of audit. There
were no issues of significances during the year under review.
The Audit Committee also reviews the audit fees for the Company
and recommends its adoption by the Board. It also reviews the
other services provided by the Auditors in ensuring that their
independence as Auditors is not compromised.
During the year, in a bid to adopt current and emerging best
practices in external audits within the greater goal of enhancing
our Corporate Governance, a review of External Auditors and the
scoping of their services were undertaken by your Company under a
JKH Group umbrella.
Proposals were invited from Audit Firms with international
affiliation / representation. All proposals received were evaluated
by a Technical Committee (TEC). The recommendations of the TEC
were reviewed by a Steering Committee comprising of a majority
of independent, non executive directors representing John Keells
Holdings PLC and other Listed Companies in the John Keells group.

Further to such evaluation, the Audit Committee recommended to
the Board of Directors to appoint Messrs. Ernst & Young – Chartered
Accountants as the External Auditors of the Company for the
Financial year 2010/11 with effect from the date of the Annual
General Meeting subject to shareholder approval.

Compliance with financial reporting and statutory
requirements
The Audit Committee receives a quarterly declaration from the
CFO and the Head of Finance, listing any departures from financial
reporting, statutory requirements and Group policies. Reported
exceptions, if any, are followed up to ensure appropriate corrective
action has been taken. With a view of ensuring uniformity of
reporting, the Company has adopted the standardized format of
Annual Financial Statements developed by the Group finance of the
Parent Company.

Conclusion
The Audit Committee is satisfied that the effectiveness of the
organisational structure of the Group and of the implementation
of the Group’s accounting policies and operational controls provide
reasonable, assurance that the affairs of the Group are managed in
accordance with Group policies and that Group assets are properly
accounted for and adequately safeguarded.

A. R. Rasiah
Chairman, Audit Committee
19th May 2010
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Relation to Financial Statements
The responsibility of the Directors, in relation to the Financial
Statements, is set out in the following statement.
The responsibility of the Auditors, in relation to the Financial
Statements prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act No. 7 of 2007, is set out in the report of the
Auditors on page 47 of the Annual Report.
As per the provisions of the Companies Act No. 7 of 2007 and
the listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange the Directors are
required to prepare for each financial year and place before a general
meeting of shareholders the Financial Statements in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act, Sri Lanka Accounting
Standards and the listing rules of the Colombo Stock Exchange,
which comprise:


A Balance Sheet, which presents a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and its Subsidiaries as at the
end of the financial year and



An Income Statement which presents a true and fair view of
the profit and loss of the Company and its Subsidiaries for the
financial year.

The Directors are of the view that, in preparing these Financial
Statements:


Appropriate Accounting policies have been selected and
applied in a consistent manner and material departures, if any
have been disclosed and explained;



All applicable accounting standards, where relevant, have been
followed;



The Directors are also responsible for taking reasonable steps to
safeguard the assets of the Company and of the Group in this regard
to give a proper consideration to the establishment of appropriate
Internal Control systems with a view to preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities.
The Directors are required to prepare the Financial Statements and
to provide the Auditors with every opportunity to take what ever
steps and undertake whatever inspections they may consider to be
appropriate to enable them to give their Audit report opinion.
The Directors are of the view that they have discharged their
responsibilities as set out in this statement.
Further, as required by section 56(2) of the Companies Act No.7
of 2007, the Board of Directors have confirmed that the Company,
based on the information available today, satisfy the solvency test
immediately after the distribution, in accordance with section 57 of
the Companies Act No.7 of 2007, and have obtained a certificate
from the Auditors, prior to declaring the first and final dividend of Rs.
4/- per share for this year.

Compliance Report
The Directors confirm that to the best of their knowledge, all taxes,
duties and levies payable by the Company and its Subsidiaries, all
contributions, levies and taxes payable on behalf of and in of the
employees of the Company and its Subsidiaries, and all other known
statutory dues as were due and payable by the Company and its
Subsidiaries as at the Balance Sheet date have been paid or, where
relevant provided for except as specified in note 29 to the Financial
Statements covering contingent liabilities.
By Order of the Board

Judgements and estimates have been made which are
reasonable and prudent.

The Directors are also of the view that the Company and its
subsidiary have adequate resources to continue in operation and
have applied the going concern basis in preparing these Financial
Statements.
Further, the Directors have a responsibility to ensure that the
Company and its subsidiary maintains sufficient accounting records
to disclose, with reasonable accuracy the financial position of
the Company and of the Group, and to ensure that the Financial
Statements presented comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act.

Keells Consultants Limited
Secretaries
19th May 2010
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CEYLON COLD
STORES PLC
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
Ceylon Cold Stores PLC, the consolidated financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2010 which
comprise the balance sheet as at that date, and the income
statement, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
Scope of Audit and Basis of Opinion
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation.

We have obtained all the information and explanations which
to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit. We therefore believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Opinion – Company
In our opinion, so far as appears from our examination, the
Company maintained proper accounting records for the year ended
March 31, 2010 and the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the Company’s state of affairs as at March 31, 2010 and
its profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Sri Lanka Accounting Standards.
Opinion – Group
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs as at March 31, 2010 and
the profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards, of the Company and its
subsidiaries dealt with thereby, so far as concerns the members of
the Company

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
These financial statements also comply with the requirements of
Section 153(2) to 153(7) of the Companies Act No. 07 of 2007.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
19th May 2010
Colombo.
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Balance Sheet
Group
As at 31st March
In Rs. ‘000 s

Page

Company

Note

2010

2009

2010

2009

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment
60
1
Intangible Assets
62
2
Investments in Subsidiaries
62
3
Other Investments
63
3
Deferred Tax Assets
63
4
Other Non Current Assets
63
5
			

3,480,787
115,006
64,299
367,431
4,027,523

3,599,815
115,006
3,100
55,432
471,172
4,244,525

2,637,435
522,892
352,306
3,512,633

2,725,641
522,892
3,100
452,039
3,703,672

Current Assets
Inventories
64
6
Trade and Other Receivable
64
7
Tax Recoverable
64
8
Amounts Due from Related Parties
71
28
Short Term Loans to Related Companies
64
9
Short Term Investment
64
10
Cash in Hand and at Bank
64
10
			
Total Assets		

1,368,845
853,859
95,205
13,003
33,000
95,003
2,458,915
6,486,438

1,209,693
903,132
79,924
14,539
727
37,683
2,245,698
6,490,223

347,143
520,135
7,162
30,000
55,709
960,149
4,472,782

404,814
585,339
10,924
2,052
1,003,129
4,706,801

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Stated Capital
65
11
Capital Reserves
65
12
Revenue Reserves
65
13
			

270,200
1,155,779
1,211,362
2,637,341

270,200
1,155,779
1,068,902
2,494,881

270,200
1,155,779
1,370,595
2,796,574

270,200
1,155,779
1,177,003
2,602,982

Non-Current Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings
65
14
Interest Bearing Borrowings from Related Parties
67
19
Deferred Tax Liabilities
66
15
Employee Benefit Liability
66
16
Deposits with the Company			
			

142,817
58,000
96,698
280,319
216,400
794,234

380,300
40,000
129,575
245,647
274,576
1,070,098

142,817
96,698
239,416
216,400
695,331

283,574
129,575
211,525
274,576
899,250

Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables
67
17
Amounts Due to Related Parties
72
28
Income Tax Liabilities
67
18
Short Term Borrowings from Related Companies
67
19
Current Portion of Long Term Interest Bearing Borrowings 65
14
Bank Overdrafts
64
10
			
Total Equity and Liabilities		

2,078,336
110,881
91,292
164,164
140,757
469,433
3,054,863
6,486,438

1,592,456
108,314
157,336
50,921
178,257
837,960
2,925,244
6,490,223

737,184
11,371
90,141
140,757
1,424
980,877
4,472,782

577,245
15,654
157,360
18,757
140,757
294,796
1,204,569
4,706,801

I certify that the Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act No.7 of 2007.

S. Jayaweera
Chief Financial Officer
The Board of Directors’ is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial Statements.
Signed for and on behalf of the Board by,

J. R. Gunaratne
Director

J. R. F. Peiris
Director

19th May 2010
Colombo
Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
The Accounting Policies and Notes as set out on pages 53 to 74 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Income Statement
Group
For the year ended 31st March
In Rs. ‘000 s

Company

page

Note

2010

2009

2010

2009

67

20

14,363,301

12,690,168

5,264,128

4,967,708

Cost of Sales			

(12,565,520)

(11,049,736)

(3,539,973)

(3,363,058)

Gross Profit			

1,797,781

1,640,432

1,724,155

1,604,650

21

304,068

226,435

79,167

58,245

Distribution Expenses			

(903,808)

(884,441)

(832,243)

(809,875)

Administrative Expenses			

(452,334)

(438,342)

(262,699)

(259,112)

Other Operating Expenses

69

22

(203,843)

(83,133)

(170,939)

(59,915)

Finance Expenses

69

23

(121,713)

(192,606)

(67,902)

(131,818)

Profit Before Tax

69

24

420,151

268,345

469,539

402,175

Tax Expense

70

25

(191,277)

(128,731)

(189,533)

(158,970)

Profit for the Year			

228,874

139,614

280,006

243,205

Revenue

Other Operating Income

69

Basic Earnings Per Share

71

26.1

10.60

6.46

12.96

11.26

Dividend Per Share - Paid

71

27.2

4.00

1.00

4.00

1.00

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
The Accounting Policies and Notes as set out on pages 53 to 74 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

For The Year Ended 31st March 2010

Stated Revaluation
Capital
Reserve
In Rs. ‘000 s			

Attributable to Equity Holders
Other
General
Capital
Reserve
Reserves

Retained
Earnings

Total

Company
As at 1st April 2008
Profit for the Year
Dividend Paid
Preference Dividends - (7%)
As at 31 March 2009
Profit for the Year
Dividend Paid
Preference Dividends - (7%)
As at 31 March 2010

270,200
270,200
270,200

1,151,805
1,151,805
1,151,805

3,974
3,974
3,974

646,000
646,000
646,000

309,412
243,205
(21,600)
(14)
531,003
280,006
(86,400)
(14)
724,595

2,381,391
243,205
(21,600)
(14)
2,602,982
280,006
(86,400)
(14)
2,796,574

GROUP
As at 1st April 2008
Profit for the Year
Dividend Paid
Preference Dividends - (7%)
As at 31 March 2009
Profit for the Year
Dividend Paid
Preference Dividends - (7%)
As at 31 March 2010

270,200
270,200
270,200

1,151,805
1,151,805
1,151,805

3,974
3,974
3,974

646,000
646,000
646,000

304,902
139,614
(21,600)
(14)
422,902
228,874
(86,400)
(14)
565,362

2,376,881
139,614
(21,600)
(14)
2,494,881
228,874
(86,400)
(14)
2,637,341

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
The Accounting Policies and Notes as set out on pages 53 to 74 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC |

Annual Report 2009 - 2010

51

Cash Flow Statement
Group
For the year ended 31st March
In Rs. ‘000 s

Company

Note

2010

2009

2010

2009

A

1,045,753

949,814

875,563

884,083

Decrease /(Increase) in Inventories		
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade and Other Receivables		
Decrease / (Increase) in Dues from Related Companies		
Increase /(Decrease) in Dues to Related Companies		
Increase in Trade and Other Payables		
Cash Generated from Operations		

(159,152)
45,616
1,536
2,567
485,840
1,422,160

(217,795)
(107,678)
1,635
(166)
293,440
919,250

57,671
64,275
3,762
(4,283)
159,899
1,156,887

(83,423)
(61,371)
103
(29,242)
88,994
799,144

Interest Expenses		
Tax /ESC Paid		
Gratuity Paid (Net of Transfers)		

(121,713)
(314,347)
(11,545)

(192,606)
(86,151)
(16,769)

(67,902)
(289,629)
(9,320)

(131,818)
(60,261)
(14,179)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities		

974,555

623,724

790,036

592,886

CASH FLOWS FROM /(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase and Construction of Property, Plant and Equipment		
Purchase of Bottles		
Net of Staff Loans (Granted) and Recovered		
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment		
Interest Income		
Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities		

(252,659)
(81,104)
21,003
2,812
11,909
(298,039)

(453,489)
(79,850)
(1,882)
14,376
7,800
(513,045)

(120,963)
(81,104)
17,145
6,085
(178,837)

(84,777)
(79,849)
(4,222)
2,515
4,841
(161,492)

Dividend Paid to Equity Holders of Parent		
Dividend Paid to Preference Shareholders of Parent		
Repayment from Short term Borrowings		
Net of Receipts/ (Repayments) of Short term loans by Related Parties		
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings		
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings		
Net Deposits Received / (Paid)		

(86,400)
(14)
131,970
(274,983)
11,758

(21,600)
(14)
(375,000)
25,298
150,000
(165,781)
3,648

(86,400)
(14)
(18,757)
(140,757)
11,758

(21,600)
(14)
(375,000)
(1,429)
(130,757)
3,648

Net Cash Flow used in Financing Activities		

(217,669)

(383,449)

(234,170)

(525,152)

NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		

458,847

(272,770)

377,029

(93,758)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR		

(800,277)

(527,507)

(292,744)

(198,986)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR		

(341,430)

(800,277)

84,285

(292,744)

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Short Term Investment		
Cash in hand and at Bank		
Bank Overdrafts		
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents		

33,000
95,003
(469,433)
(341,430)

37,683
(837,960)
(800,277)

30,000
55,709
(1,424)
84,285

2,052
(294,796)
(292,744)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes

CASH FLOWS FROM / (USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
The Accounting Policies and Notes as set out on pages 53 to 74 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Cash Flow Statement
Group
For the year ended 31st March
In Rs. ‘000 s

Note

Note - A
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes
Profit Before Tax		
Adjustments for:
Interest Income		
Profit on Sale of Investment		
Interest Expenses		
Depreciation of PPE		
Transfer from WIP		
Depreciation of Bottles		
Emloyee Benefit Plan Cost		
Loss / (Profit) on Sale of PPE and write off of PPE		
Unrealised Foreign Exchange (Gain) / Loss		
Bad Debts Provision		
Bottle Breakages and Disposals		
Dealer deposit write back		
		

Company

2010

2009

2010

2009

420,151

268,345

469,539

402,175

(11,909)
(3,131)
121,713
364,606
1,264
54,546
46,217
3,005
40
10,304
108,881
(69,934)
1,045,753

(7,800)
192,606
347,068
65,096
40,156
373
21
19,065
114,051
(89,167)
949,814

(6,085)
(3,131)
67,902
207,904
1,264
54,546
37,211
40
7,426
108,881
(69,934)
875,563

(4,841)
131,818
214,158
65,096
34,401
(2,331)
(8)
18,731
114,051
(89,167)
884,083

Figures in brackets indicate deductions.
The Accounting Policies and Notes as set out on pages 53 to 74 form an integral part of these Financial Statements.
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Accounting Policies
1.

GENERAL

Reporting Entity
Ceylon Cold Stores PLC (PQ 4) is a public limited liability Company
incorporated and domiciled in Sri Lanka. The registered office of the
Company is located at No 1,Justice Akbar Mawatha, Colombo 2 and
principal place of business is located at Samadarawatte, Ranala,
Kaduwella.
Issued ordinary shares of the Company are listed on the Colombo
Stock Exchange (CSE).
In the report of the Directors and in the Financial Statements, “the
Company” refers to Ceylon Cold Stores PLC. “The Group” refers to the
Companies whose accounts have been consolidated therein.
The consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st March 2010 were authorized for issue by the Directors
on 19th May 2010.
All values presented in the Financial Statements are in Sri Lanka
rupees unless otherwise indicated.
Principal Activities
The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing and
marketing of Beverages, Frozen Confectionery and Dairy Products.
The principal activity of Jaykay Marketing Services (Pvt) Ltd is retail
trading and super marketing. Elephant House Farms Limited is a non
operating Company at present.
Parent Enterprise and Ultimate Parent Enterprise
The Group’s parent undertaking is John Keells Holdings PLC. The
Directors are of the opinion that the Group’s ultimate parent
undertaking and controlling party is John Keells Holdings PLC which
is incorporated in Sri Lanka.
Directors/ Chief Financial Officer Responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparation and presentation of
these Financial Statements and the Chief Financial Officer has to
certify that Financial Statements have been prepared in compliance
with the requirement of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007.

2.

presented in accordance with Sri Lanka Accounting Standards (SLAS)
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and
requirements of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007.
Basis of Preparation
The Financial Statements, presented in Sri Lanka Rupees, have been
prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain property, plant
and equipment, which have been revalued which are stated at Fair
value /market values.
Changes in Accounting Policies and Adoption of New and
Revised Sri Lanka Accounting Standards during the year.
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the
previous financial year.
Comparative information
The accounting policies applied by the Group are, unless otherwise
stated, consistent with those used in the previous year. Previous
years’ figures and phrases have been re-arranged, wherever
necessary, to conform to the current year’s presentation.
Events after the Balance Sheet Date
All material post Balance Sheet events have been considered and
appropriate adjustments or disclosures have been made in the
respective notes to the Financial Statements.
Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with
SLAS, requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgments about the carrying amount of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

GENERAL POLICIES

Statement of Compliance
The Balance Sheet, Statement of Income, Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement, together with the accounting
policies and notes (the “Financial Statements”) of the Group as at 31
March 2010 and for the year then ended; have been prepared and

The judgments made by management in the application of SLAS
that have a significant effect on the Financial Statements are
mentioned below.
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Accounting Policies
Policy No

Note

Amortisation of leasehold property

6

1

Deferred tax

5

4 & 15

Employee benefit liability

7

16

3.

CONSOLIDATION POLICY

Basis of Consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the Financial
Statements of the Company and its Subsidiaries, over which it has
control over the financial and operating policies, using consistent
accounting policies.
All intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses
and deficits on transactions between Group companies have been
eliminated in full.
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are those enterprises controlled by the parent. Control
exists when the parent has the power, directly or indirectly to
govern the financial and operating policies of an enterprise.
Subsidiaries are controlled from the date the parent obtains control
until the date that control ceases. Acquisitions of Subsidiaries are
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.
The following companies have been consolidated under Section 152
of the Companies Act, No.7 of 2007, where the Company controls
the composition of the Board of Directors of these companies.
% Holding
Jaykay Marketing Services (Pvt) Ltd.

100

Elephant House Farms Ltd.

100

The total profits and losses for the year, of the Company and of
its Subsidiaries are included in consolidated Income Statement.
All assets and liabilities of the Company and of its Subsidiaries
are included in the consolidated Balance Sheet. The consolidated
Cash Flow statement includes the Cash Flows of the Group and its
Subsidiaries.
Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is initially measured at
cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities. Following initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
Group’s of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash generating unit to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. The impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets pro-rata to the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated
with the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation.
Financial Year
All Companies in the group have a common financial Year which ends
on 31st March.

4.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS AND TRANSLATIONS

Foreign Currency Transactions
The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Sri Lanka
Rupees, which is the Group’s functional and presentation currency.
All foreign exchange transactions are converted to Sri Lanka Rupees,
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the time the transactions are
effected.
Foreign Currency Translations
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are
retranslated to Sri Lanka Rupee equivalents at the exchange rate
prevailing at the Balance Sheet date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when
the values were determined. The resulting gains and losses are
accounted for in the Income Statement.

5.

Income Tax

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Income
tax expense is recognised in the Income Statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity, in which
case it is recognised in equity.
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Current Tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect
of previous years. The elements of income and expenditure as
reported in the Financial Statements and computed in accordance
with the provisions of the Inland Revenue Act No. 10 of 2006 and
amendments thereto. Relevant details are disclosed in note 25 to
the Financial Statements.

6. VALUATION OF ASSETS AND THEIR BASES OF
MEASUREMENT
Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement
The Property, Plant & Equipment are recorded at cost /valuation less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses as setout below.



Deferred Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at the Balance Sheet date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities, and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each Balance Sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax rates that are
expected to apply to the year when the asset is realised or liability is
settled, based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted as at the Balance Sheet date.
Income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is
recognised in equity.
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Land and Buildings are stated at valuation determined by an
Independent Chartered Valuers.
All other classes of assets are stated at cost.

When an asset is revalued, any increase in the carrying amount is
credited directly to a revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in the Income Statement, in which case the increase
is recognised in the income statement. Any revaluation deficit
that offsets a previous surplus in the same asset is directly offset
against the surplus in the revaluation reserve and any excess
recognised as an expense. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve
relating to the asset sold is transferred to retained earnings.
Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use. Any gain or loss arising on derecognising of the asset
is included in the Income Statement in the year the asset is
derecognised.
The cost of property, plant & equipment is the cost of purchase or
construction together with any expenses incurred in bringing the
assets to its working condition for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred for the purpose of acquiring, extending or
improving assets of permanent nature by means of which to
carry on the businesses or to increase the earning capacity of the
business has been treated as capital expenditure.
The cost of property, plant and equipment is the cash price
equivalent at the recognition date. If payment is deferred beyond
normal credit terms, the difference between the cash price
equivalent and the total payment is recognised as interest over the
period of credit unless such interest is recognised in the carrying
amount of the item in accordance with the allowed alternative
treatment in SALS 20.
The carrying value of Property Plant and Equipment are reviewed for
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may not be recoverable.
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Subsequent Costs/ Replacement of Parts
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in the Income Statement as incurred.
Depreciation
Provision for depreciation is calculated by using a straight-line
method on the cost or valuation of all property, plant and equipment,
other than freehold land, in order to write off such amounts over the
estimated useful economic life of such assets. The leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.
The estimated useful life of assets are as follows:
Assets
Buildings on freehold land
Buildings on leasehold land
Plant and Machinery
Motor Vehicles

Years
50
(Over lease period)
10-20
5-8

Furniture and Fittings

8

Office Equipment

6

Computer Software

3

Wooden Pallets / Crates

4

Coolers / Freezers

6

Others

6

The useful life, residual values and depreciation methods of assets
are reviewed, and adjusted if required, at the end of each financial
year.
Investments
All quoted and unquoted securities, which are held as non-current
investments, are valued at cost. The cost of the investment is the
cost of acquisition inclusive of brokerage and costs of transaction.
The carrying amounts of long term investments are reduced to
recognise a decline which is considered other than temporary, in the
value of investments, determined on an individual investment basis.
In the Company’s Financial Statements, investments in Subsidiaries
have been accounted for at cost, net of any impairment losses
which are charged to the Income Statement. Incomes from these
investments are recognised only to the extent of dividends received.

Impairment of Assets
The carrying amount of Group’s non financial assets, other than
long term investment, retirement benefit liability, inventories
and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives or that
are not yet available for use, recoverable amount is estimated at
each reporting date.
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount.
A cash generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset group
that generates cash flows that largely are independent from
other assets and Groups. Impairment losses are recognised in the
Income Statement. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash
generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying
amount of other assets in the unit on pro rata basis.
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash generating unit is
the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using pre tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. In respect
of other assets, impairment losses recognised in prior periods are
assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
Other Non-Current Assets Returnable Containers
Returnable containers are reflected under non-current assets at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment loses.
Depreciation is provided over its useful life of 5 years up to the net
realisable value. The net realisable value of returnable containers
equals to the deposits received by the Company or cost whichever
is lower.
The average cost of bottle breakages during the financial year is
written off to the Income Statement.
Upon termination of dealership, the weighted average cost of
bottles not returned less the accumulated depreciation and deposits
are written off to the Income Statement.
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Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
The costs incurred in bringing inventories to its present location and
condition, are accounted for as follows:
Raw materials

-

On actual cost on a weighted average
basis

Finished goods and -

valued at full cost on weighted average
basis;

Work in Progress

at weighted average cost of direct
material excluding packing material, and
appropriate proportions of direct cost
based on percentage completed

-

Other inventories

-

At actual cost

Trading stocks

-

At actual cost on weighted average basis

the actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) method
which is the benchmark method recommended under the SLAS No.
16 (revised 2006) - Employee Benefits.
The group recognizes all actuarial gains and losses arising from the
defined benefit plan immediately in the Income Statement. The
Liability is disclosed under deferred liabilities in the Balance Sheet,
and is not externally funded.
Defined Contribution Plan - Employees’ Provident Fund and
Employees’ Trust Fund
Employees are eligible for Employees’ Provident Fund contributions
and Employees’ Trust Fund contributions in line with respective
statutes and regulations. The Group contributes a minimum of the
defined percentages of gross emoluments of employees to an
approved Employees’ Provident Fund and to the Employees’ Trust
Fund respectively which are externally funded.
Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation.

Trade and Other Receivable
Trade and other receivable are stated at the amounts they are
estimated to realise, net of provisions for bad and doubtful
receivables.

All contingent liabilities are disclosed as a note to the Financial
Statements unless the outflow of resources is remote. Contingent
assets are disclosed, where inflow of economic benefit is probable.

A provision for doubtful debts is made when the debt exceeds 180
days, and the collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad
debts are written off when identified.

8.

Short-Term Investments
Treasury Bills and other interest earning securities held for resale in
the near future to benefit from short-term market movements are
accounted for at cost plus the relevant proportion of the discounts
or premiums.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash
at bank and in hand and short term Investment with a maturity of 3
months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

7.

LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity
The Company measures the present value of its future liability of
the retirement benefit gratuity of (1/2) month salary for each year
of service from the date of commencement of service, in terms of

INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue recognition
Revenue from rendering services or sale of goods is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns
and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership
have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration
is provable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can
be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing management
involvement with the goods or services rendered.
The following specific criteria are used for recognition of revenue:


Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods
have passed to the buyer with the Group retaining neither
a continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor an effective control over the
goods sold.
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plant and equipment in a state of efficiency has been charged
to the Income Statement.

Rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered or
performed.
Turnover based Taxes
Turnover based taxes include Value Added Tax (VAT), Nation
Building Tax (NBT) and Turnover Tax (TT), Which are recognised
in the Profit or Loss to the period which it relates in respect of
the trading activities of the Company

For the purpose of presentation of the Income Statement, the
“function of expenses” method has been adopted, on the basis
that it presents fairly the elements of the Group and Group’s
performance.


Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred unless they are incurred in respect of
qualifying assets in which case it is capitalised.



Operating Leases
Lease payments under an operating lease are recognised as an
expense on a straight line basis which is more representative
of the time pattern of the uses benefit.



Research and development
Expenditure on Research and development recognised as
expense when incurred.

9.

Segment Information

The Company pays such taxes in accordance with the
respective statutes


Dividend
Dividend income is recognised on a cash basis.



Rental income
Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis over the term
of the rent period.





Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis unless
collectibility is in doubt.
Gains and losses
Net gains and losses of a revenue nature arising from the
disposal of property, plant and equipment and other noncurrent assets, including investments, are accounted for in
the Income Statement, after deducting from the proceeds on
disposal, the carrying amount of such assets and the related
selling expenses.
Gains and losses arising from activities incidental to the main
revenue generating activities and those arising from a group
of similar transactions which are not material, are aggregated,
reported and presented on a net basis.
Any losses arising from guaranteed rentals are accounted for in
the year of incurring the same. A provision is recognised if the
best estimate indicates a loss.



Other Income
Other income is recognised on an accrual basis.



Expenditure recognition
Expenses are recognised in the Income Statement on the basis
of a direct association between the cost incurred and the
earning of specific items of income. All expenditure incurred in
the running of the business and in maintaining the property,

Reporting Segments
The Groups internal organisation and management is structured
based on individual products and services which are similar in nature
and process and where the risk and return are similar. The primary
segments represent this business structure.

Since the individual segments are located close to each other and
operate in the same industry environment and catering to clientele
from the same geographical location the needs for geographical
segmentation does not arise.
Inter segment Pricing
Inter segment transactions are priced at fair market values.
Segment Information
Segment information has been prepared in conformity with the
accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the
consolidated Financial Statements of the group.

10. Events occurring After the Balance Sheet Date
All material post Balance Sheet events have been considered and
where appropriate, adjustment or disclosures have been made in
respective notes to the Financial Statements.
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11. EFFECT OF SRI LANKA ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
The following standards have been adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka and are effective for the
Company’s accounting periods on the dates specified below.
Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 44 – Financial Instruments;
Presentation (SLAS 44) and Sri Lanka Accounting Standard 45 Financial Instruments, Recognition and Measurement(SLAS45)
SLAS 44 and 45 was issued in 2008, and will be effective for
financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011. Accordingly,
the Financial Statements for the year ending 31 March 2012 will be
required to adopt SLAS 44 and 45.
These two standards together provide comprehensive guidance
on identification, classification, measurement and presentation
of financial instruments (including Derivatives) into financial
assets, financial liabilities and equity instruments. Accordingly
when a financial asset or liability is recognised initially, the group
will measure such financial asset or liability at its fair value plus,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset, financial liability and subsequently
measured either at fair value or amortized cost depending on the
categorization of financial assets and financial liabilities.
In order to comply with the requirements of these standards, the
group /Company is in the process of setting up an implementation
plan and assessing the effect of adoption of the aforesaid two
standards. Due to the complex nature of the effects of these
standards the impact of adoption cannot be estimated as at the
date of publication of these Financial Statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

1,451,610
3,856
1,455,466

GROUP
Cost / Valuation
As at 1 April 2009
Additions
Disposals
Transfer to Income Statement
Transfers
As at 31 March 2010

1,440,214

1,443,197

Carrying Value
As at 31 March 2010

As at 31 March 2009

(8,413)
(6,839)
(15,252)

1,443,197

As at 31 March 2009

Accumulated Depreciation /Impairment
As at 1 April 2009
Charge for the year
On Disposals
As at 31 March 2010

1,440,214

Carrying Value
As at 31 March 2010

(8,413)
(6,839)
(15,252)

1,451,610
3,856
1,455,466

51,010

46,084

(30,707)
(4,926)
(35,633)

81,717
81,717

33,838

31,719

(2,316)
(2,119)
(4,435)

36,154
36,154

1,253,540

1,236,083

(649,777)
(148,692)
5,195
(793,274)

1,903,317
95,616
(6,771)
37,195
2,029,357

928,951

922,095

(502,586)
(66,762)
1,600
(567,748)

1,431,537
47,051
(1,600)
12,855
1,489,843

377,185

378,811

(249,575)
(55,192)
526
(304,241)

626,760
42,260
(4,739)
18,771
683,052

10,456

7,139

(32,909)
(4,133)
164
(36,878)

43,364
817
(164)
44,017

17,546

12,124

(59,987)
(5,532)
320
(65,199)

77,533
110
(320)
77,323

17,546

12,023

(59,987)
(5,523)
320
(65,190)

77,533
(320)
77,213

329,607

263,123

(1,028,680)
(143,425)
46,334
(1,125,771)

1,358,287
72,408
(46,362)
4,561
1,388,894

277,534

224,106

(964,824)
(122,528)
46,306
(1,041,046)

1,242,358
69,100
(46,306)
1,265,152

127,730

104,348

-

127,730
38,409
(1,264)
(60,527)
104,348

14,119

139

-

14,119
139
(1,264)
(12,855)
139

-

3,480,787

(2,027,139)
(364,606)
52,375
(2,339,370)

5,626,954
252,659
(58,192)
(1,264)
5,820,157

-

2,637,435

(1,571,035)
(207,904)
48,390
(1,730,549)

4,296,675
120,963
(48,390)
(1,264)
4,367,984

Total
2010

3,599,815

-

(1,915,385)
(347,068)
235,314
(2,027,139)

5,423,528
453,489
(250,063)
5,626,954

2,725,641

-

(1,584,759)
(214,158)
227,882
(1,571,035)

4,439,965
84,777
(228,066)
4,296,676

Total
2009
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Accumulated Depreciation /Impairment
As at 1 April 2009
Charge for the year
On Disposals
As at 31 March 2010

Company
Cost / Valuation
As at 1 April 2009
Additions
Disposals
Transfer to Income Statement
Transfers
As at 31 March 2010

		 Buildings on		 Equipment,				
Land and
Leasehold
Plant and Furniture and
Motor		 Capital Work
Buildings
Land
Machinery
Fittings
Vehicles
Others in Progress

1.
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1.2 The Land and Buildings of the Company were revalued during the financial year ended 31 March 2008 by Messrs. P. B. Kalugalagedara
& Associates - Independent Chartered valuation surveyors. The properties were valued at their open market / fair value, and the surplus
arising from the revaluation was transferred to the revaluation reserve.
The carrying amount of revalued assets that would have been included in the Financial Statements had the assets been carried at cost
less depreciation as follows;
		
Cost Accumulated
As at 31st March			 Depreciation
In Rs. 000’s				
Class of asset
Land		
Buildings on Freehold Land		
Buildings on Leasehold Land		

256,383
266,054
27,964

107,433
17,886

Net Book
Value
2010

Net Book
Value
2009

256,383
158,621
10,078

256,383
166,969
10,670

Company

Group

As at 31st March		
In Rs. 000’s
1.3 FULLY DEPRECIATED ASSETS
Buildings on Leasehold Land		
Plant & Machinery		
Motor Vehicle		
Furniture & Fittings & Equipment		
Other Assets		
		

2010

2009

2010

2009

5,368
193,381
42,771
59,890
753,117
1,054,527

5,368
182,248
43,091
40,315
609,760
880,782

79,255
42,771
13,210
728,531
863,767

77,812
43,091
12,084
592,737
725,724

Property, Plant & Equipment with a cost of Rs. 1,054 million (2009 - Rs. 881million. ) have been fully depreciated and are in continuing use by
the Company and its Subsidiary.

1.4 Mortgage of assets
Company
Syndicated loan of Rs 500 million obtained from NDB and DFCC of Rs 250 million each and a further loan of Rs 120 million obtained from
DFCC are pledged as follows;
Primary concurrent mortgage over land and building at Kaduwela and existing and new machinery funded through the loan.
Kaduwela Land and Buildings
Plant and Machinery

Rs. 513 Million
Rs. 519 Million
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1.5 Building on Leasehold land
The Company and its Subsidiary has constructed buildings on leasehold land. Future minimum lease payments under non cancelable operating
leases of land are as follows:
Group
Company
As at 31st March		
2010
2009
2010
2009
In Rs. 000’s
Not later than one year		
later than one year and not later than five years		
later than five years		

4,881
52,913
9,386

2,007
55,566
22,600

3
11
29

3
11
31

The leasehold land obtained from the Government of Sri Lanka on an operating lease has not been capitalised in the books of the Company.

2

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GOODWILL
Cost
At the beginning of the year		
At the end of the year		

143,706
143,706

143,706
143,706

-

-

Impairment/Amortization
At the beginning of the year		
At the end of the year		

(28,700)
(28,700)

(28,700)
(28,700)

-

-

Balance as at Year End		

115,006

115,006

-

-

The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit relevant to Goodwill is more than the carrying amount as at Balance Sheet date.
Therefore no impairment loss is recognised in respect of Goodwill as at 31st March 2010.
Significant Intangible asset not recognised by the Company
“Elephant “Brand which is significant intangible asset controlled by the Company but not recognised as an asset because it did not meet
certain recognition criteria as per SLAS 37 - Intangible assets.”

Company

Group

As at 31st March
In Rs. 000’s

3

Note

2010

2009

2010

2009

3.1

-

-

522,892

522,892

4,000

4,000

522,892
526,892

522,892
526,892

(4,000)
522,892

(4,000)
522,892

INVESTMENTS

Carrying Value
Investments in Subsidiaries
Unquoted

3.1 Investments in Subsidiaries
Elephant House Farms Ltd.
Ordinary Shares		
Jaykay Marketing Services (Pvt) Ltd.
Ordinary Shares				
		
Provision for Impairment
- Elephant House Farms Ltd.				
Total Investments in Subsidiaries		
-
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Company

Group

As at 31st March
In Rs. 000’s

No of Units

2010

2009

2010

2009

310,000

-

3,100

-

3,100

At the beginning of the year		
Credit		
At the end of the year		

55,432
8,867
64,299

25,191
30,241
55,432

-

-

The closing Defferred Tax Asset balance relates to the following :
Accelerated Depreciation for Tax Purposes		
Retirement Benefit Obligations		
Tax Losses		
Balance As at Year End		

(80,419)
14,315
130,403
64,299

(58,704)
11,942
102,194
55,432

-

-

3.2 Other Investments
Unquoted - Pyramid Unit Trust

Market value of Pyramid unit trust is Rs. 2.8 million as at 31 March 2009

4

DEFFERED TAX ASSET

The Subsidiary Company Jaykay Marketing Services (Pvt) Ltd has recognised the Deffered Tax Asset amounting to Rs. 64million (2008/2009
- Rs. 55 million) based on the amount of unused tax losses carried forward as at 31 March 2010, to the extent that is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused tax losses can be utilised. The availability of future taxable profits have been
computed on the basis of forecasted profits of Jaykay Marketing Services (Pvt) Ltd for the next 5 years.

5

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

RETURNABLE CONTAINERS
5.1
LONG TERM PORTION OF LOANS TO STAFF
5.2
		

308,653
58,778
367,431

390,976
80,196
471,172

308,653
43,653
352,306

390,976
61,063
452,039

5.1 RETURNABLE CONTAINERS
Cost
Cost of Bottles at beginning of the year		
Purchases during the year		
Breakages/Disposals during the year		
Cost of Bottles at end of the year		

578,957
81,104
(192,928)
467,133

677,532
79,850
(178,425)
578,957

578,957
81,104
(192,928)
467,133

677,532
79,849
(178,424)
578,957

Accumulated Depreciation/Impairment
Accumulated Depreciation at beginning of the year		
Charge for the year		
Adjustment on Breakages/Disposals		
Accumulated Depreciation at end of the year		
Carrying value at end of the year		

(187,981)
(54,546)
84,047
(158,480)
308,653

(187,259)
(65,096)
64,374
(187,981)
390,976

(187,981)
(54,546)
84,047
(158,480)
308,653

(187,259)
(65,096)
64,374
(187,981)
390,976

5.2 Loans to Staff
At the beginning of the year		
Loans Granted during the year		
Loans Recovered during the year		
At the end of the year		

103,650
22,309
(43,312)
82,647

101,768
40,188
(38,306)
103,650

78,673
18,799
(35,944)
61,528

74,451
36,444
(32,222)
78,673

Receivables within One year (Vide Note No: 7)		
Receivables after One year		
		

23,869
58,778
82,647

23,454
80,196
103,650

17,875
43,653
61,528

17,610
61,063
78,673
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Company

Group

As at 31st March
In Rs. 000’s

Note

2010

2009

2010

2009

Raw Materials		
Work-in-Progress		
Finished Goods		
Machinery Spares		
Other Stocks		
		

117,226
24,908
1,135,637
87,476
3,598
1,368,845

102,766
28,857
993,879
80,304
3,887
1,209,693

117,226
24,908
113,936
87,475
3,598
347,143

102,766
28,857
189,000
80,304
3,887
404,814

604,096
(34,928)
2,298
258,524
23,869
853,859

607,629
(32,218)
1,331
302,876
60
23,454
903,132

494,938
(29,411)
36,733
17,875
520,135

556,487
(27,166)
38,348
60
17,610
585,339

6

7

INVENTORIES

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

Trade and Other Receivable		
Less : Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts.		
Other Debtors		
Advances and Prepayments		
Deposits		
Short Term Portion of Loans to Staff
5.2
		

Trade and Other Receivables include Staff Loans amounting to Rs. 23.9 million (2009 - Rs. 23.4 million.) for the Group and Rs. 17.9 million
(2008/2009 - Rs. 17.6 million) for the Company reflected in Note No 5.2.

8

TAX RECOVERABLE

At the beginning of the year		
Payments / Transfer During the year		
Written off during the year		
Transferred to Income Tax Payable		
At the end of the year		

79,924
24,718
(8,763)
(674)
95,205

57,023
33,627
205
(9,931)
79,924

-

-

The Tax Recoverable represents Economic Service Charge paid and to be set off against future Income Tax Liabilities of the Subsidiary.

9

SHORT TERM LOANS TO RELATED COMPANIES

At the beginning of the year		
Repayments during the year		
At the end of the year		

727
(727)
-

9,454
(8,727)
727

-

-

Short Term Investment		

33,000

-

30,000

-

Cash in Hand		
Cash at Bank		
		

10,510
84,493
95,003

8,543
29,140
37,683

727
54,982
55,709

650
1,402
2,052

Bank Overdrafts		
		

(469,433)
(341,430)

(837,960)
(800,277)

(1,424)
84,285

(294,796)
(292,744)

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All the Cash and Cash equivalent held by the Group that are available for use by the Group.
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Company

Group

As at 31st March
In Rs. 000’s

No. of shares
000’s

2010

2009

2010

2009

Fully Paid Ordinary Shares
21,600
Fully Paid Preference Shares
25
		

270,000
200
270,200

270,000
200
270,200

270,000
200
270,200

270,000
200
270,200

Note

2010

2009

2010

2009

Revaluation Reserve
11.1
Other Capital Reserves
11.2
		

1,151,805
3,974
1,155,779

1,151,805
3,974
1,155,779

1,151,805
3,974
1,155,779

1,151,805
3,974
1,155,779

11 STATED CAPITAL

Company

Group

12 CAPITAL RESERVES

12.1 Revaluation reserve consists of the surplus on the revaluation of property, plant and equipment net of deferred tax effect.
12.2 Other Capital Reserves comprises capital redemption reserve funds and Capital Accretion reserve.

13 REVENUE RESERVES
General Reserves
12.1
Retained Earnings		
		

646,000
565,362
1,211,362

646,000
422,902
1,068,902

646,000
724,595
1,370,595

646,000
531,003
1,177,003

13.1 General reserve represents amounts set aside by the Directors for general application.

14 INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS
At the beginning of the year		
Obtained during the year		
Repayments during the year		
At the end of the year		

558,557
(274,983)
283,574

949,338
150,000
(540,781)
558,557

424,331
(140,757)
283,574

930,088
(505,757)
424,331

Repayable within One Year		
Repayable after One Year		
		

140,757
142,817
283,574

178,257
380,300
558,557

140,757
142,817
283,574

140,757
283,574
424,331

Security and Re payment Terms
Lending Institution
Name of Facility
DFCC

Project Loan
Term Loan

NDB

Project Loan
E Friendly Loan

Assets Pledged

Kaduwela land and building and Soft Drinks
Plant and Machinery

Kaduwela land and building and Soft Drinks
Plant and Machinery

Interest Rate

Repayment Terms

10.5 %

5 years

AWDR + 4%

4 1/2 years

10.5 %

5 years

6.5 %

5 years
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Company

Group

As at 31st March		
In Rs. 000’s

2010

2009

2010

2009

At the beginning of the year		
Reversal for the year		
At the end of the year		

129,575
(32,877)
96,698

161,873
(32,298)
129,575

129,575
(32,877)
96,698

161,873
(32,298)
129,575

The closing Deferred Tax Liability balance relates to the following:
Accelerated Depreciation for Tax Purposes		
Retirement benefit liability		
		

177,705
(81,007)
96,698

200,287
(70,712)
129,575

177,705
(81,007)
96,698

200,287
(70,712)
129,575

At the beginning of the year		

245,647

222,260

211,525

191,303

Interest Cost		
Charge for the year		
Payments during the year		
Transfers		
Actuarial Loss		
At the end of the year		

24,565
18,204
(15,500)
3,955
3,448
280,319

22,226
17,398
(17,206)
437
532
245,647

21,153
13,530
(13,275)
3,955
2,528
239,416

19,130
13,378
(14,616)
437
1,893
211,525

15 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

16 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITY

The Employee Benefit Liability of the group is based on the Actuarial Valuation carried out by Messrs. Actuarial & Management Consultants (Pvt)
Ltd. Independent Actuaries, on 31st March 2010. The principle assumptions used in determining the cost of retirement benefits were as follows:
Financial Assumptions:
Rate of Discount
Long Term Salary Increment Rate

10%
10%

Demographic Assumptions:
Mortality In Service Issued by Institute of Actuaries , London

A 1949-52 Mortality Table

Withdrawal

3 % across the board

Disability
Retirement Age
Clerical and Labour Staff
Sales Representatives
Executive Staff

Assumption similar to those used in other comparable schemes for disability.
60 years
55 years
55 years

The liability to the above Employee Benefit is not externally funded.
The expenses recognised in the following line items in the income statement
Cost of sales		
Distribution expenses		
Administrative expenses		
		

28,948
7,023
10,246
46,217

29,834
1,628
8,694
40,156

21,398
5,567
10,246
37,211

20,856
4,851
8,694
34,401
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Company

Group

As at 31st March		
In Rs. 000’s

2010

2009

2010

2009

1,261,218
178,487
404,394
234,237
2,078,336

1,018,082
128,204
283,023
163,147
1,592,456

195,025
116,206
229,312
196,641
737,184

169,551
77,204
164,932
165,558
577,245

17 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLE
Trade and Other Payable		
Accrued Expenses		
Sundry Creditors		
Other Taxes Payable		
		

Withholding Tax on dividend declared by the Company amounting to Rs.8.64 million (2008/2009 - Rs. 8.64 million) has not been recognised
as a liability in the Financial Statements in accordance with SLAS 12 (revised) as at 31 March 2010.

18 INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
At the beginning of the year		
Provision for the year		
Payments for the year		
Transfer from ESC Recoverable/ ESC Payable		
At the end of the year		

157,336
224,259
(289,629)
(674)
91,292

39,740
187,976
(60,449)
(9,931)
157,336

157,360
222,410
(289,629)
90,141

29,853
191,268
(60,261)
(3,500)
157,360

At the beginning of the year		
Obtained during the year		
Settlements during the year		
At the end of the year		

90,921
150,000
(18,757)
222,164

74,350
18,000
(1,429)
90,921

18,757
(18,757)
-

20,186
(1,429)
18,757

Payable to
Short Term Borrowings
Ultimate Parent		

164,164

50,921

-

18,757

Long Term Borrowings
Companies under common control		
		

58,000
222,164

40,000
90,921

-

18,757

2010

2009

2010

2009

14,363,301

12,690,168

5,264,128

4,967,708

19 INTEREST BEARING BORROWINGS FROM RELATED COMPANIES

Company

Group

For the year ended 31st March		
In Rs. 000’s

20 REVENUE
20.1 Net Revenue		

The above Turnover is stated after deducting Value Added Tax amounting to Rs. 829.1 million.(2008/2009 - Rs. 795.7 million.) for the Group
and Rs. 823 million (2008/2009 - Rs. 790 million) for the Company and Turnover Tax of Rs. 130.4 million. (2008/2009 - Rs. 110 million ) for
the Group and Turnover Tax of Rs. 2.7 million (2008/2009 - Rs. 2 million) for the Company.
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For the year ended 31st March
In Rs. 000’s
20.2 Business Segment Analysis
Company
Revenue
External Sales
Total Revenue

Manufacture
2010
2009

Retail Trade
2010
2009

Total
2010

2009

5,152,560
5,152,560

4,891,590
4,891,590

111,568
111,568

76,118
76,118

5,264,128
5,264,128

4,967,708
4,967,708

624,355

531,604

4,858

4,059

629,213

535,663

Other Operating Expenses					
					
Other Operating Income					
Finance Charges					
Profit before Tax					
Tax Expense					
Profit for the year					

(170,939)
458,274
79,167
(67,902)
469,539
(189,533)
280,006

(59,915)
475,748
58,245
(131,818)
402,175
(158,970)
243,205

Segment Results

Manufacture
2010
2009
20.3 Business Segment Analysis
GROUP
Revenue
External Sales
Total Revenue

Retail Trade
2010
2009

Total
2010

2009

5,152,560
5,152,560

4,891,590
4,891,590

9,210,741
9,210,741

7,798,578
7,798,578

14,363,301
14,363,301

12,690,168
12,690,168

Segment Results

620,602

531,605

(178,963)

(213,977)

441,639

317,628

Other Operating Expenses

(167,212)
453,390
79,192
(67,902)
464,680
(189,533)
275,147

(58,622)
472,983
58,230
(131,818)
399,395
(158,970)
240,425

(36,631)
(215,594)
224,876
(53,811)
(44,529)
(1,744)
(46,273)

(24,490)
(238,467)
168,205
(60,788)
(131,050)
30,239
(100,811)

(203,843)
237,796
304,068
(121,713)
420,151
(191,277)
228,874

(83,112)
234,516
226,435
(192,606)
268,345
(128,731)
139,614

		

2010

2008

2010

2008

20.4 Geographical Segment Analysis (By Location)
Sri Lanka		
Outside Sri Lanka		

14,264,529
98,772

12,592,173
97,995

5,165,356
98,772

4,869,713
97,995

Total Revenue		

14,363,301

12,690,168

5,264,128

4,967,708

Other Operating Income
Finance Charges
Profit before Tax
Tax Expense
Profit for the year

Company

Group
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Company

Group

For the year ended 31st March		
In Rs. 000’s

2010

2009

2010

2009

21
3,131
10,877
11,909
21,156
22,960
69,125
164,889
304,068

11,559
7,800
21,111
21,072
34,391
130,502
226,435

3,131
10,877
6,085
10,023
7,734
41,317
79,167

8
11,559
4,841
12,034
7,897
19,575
2,331
58,245

21 OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Exchange Gain		
Profit on Sale of Investment		
Scrap Sales		
Interest Income		
Rental Income		
Franchise Income		
Sundry Income		
Promotional Income		
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment		
		

22 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Other Operating Expenses includes Nation Building Tax of Rs.140 million. (2008/2009 - Rs. 8.5 million) for the Group and Rs. 132 million
(2008/2009 - Rs. 8.5 million) for the Company.

23 FINANCE EXPENSES
Interest Expense on Borrowings
Long Term		
Short Term		
		

89,754
31,959
121,713

77,890
114,716
192,606

41,401
26,501
67,902

58,028
73,790
131,818

18,021
3,144
1,481
70

30,793
3,171
1,257
42

12,887
1,800
792
70

22,962
1,800
623
42

46,217
69,833
1,184,058
364,605
54,546
10,304
5,085
3,005
413

40,156
73,132
1,295,406
347,068
65,096
19,065
2,534
373
21

37,211
60,540
855,471
207,904
54,546
7,426
5,074
413

34,401
63,839
855,248
214,158
65,096
18,731
2,494
-

24 PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Profit Before Tax is stated after charging all expenses including the following
Remuneration to Executive Director’s		
Remuneration to Non - Executive Director’s		
Auditors’ Fees and Expenses - External Audit		
- Non Audit Services		
Costs of Defined Employee Benefits
Defined Benefit Plan Cost		
Defined Contribution Plan Cost - EPF and ETF		
Staff Expenses		
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment		
Depreciation on Bottles		
Bad Debts Provision		
Donations		
Loss on disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment		
Exchange Loss		

70

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC |

Annual Report 2009 - 2010

Notes to the Financial Statements
Company

Group

For the year ended 31st March
In Rs. 000’s

Note

2010

2009

2010

2009

Current Tax Expense		
Economic service charge written off		
Over Provision of previous years tax		
Deferred Tax Reversal
25.2
		

232,897
8,763
(8,639)
(41,744)
191,277

201,454
(205)
(9,667)
(62,539)
128,731

230,417
(8,007)
(32,877)
189,533

201,091
(9,823)
(32,298)
158,970

25 TAX EXPENSE

Social Responsibility Levy has been charged at the rate of 1.5 % on the Income Tax Liability, which is included in the Current Tax Expense.
25.1 Reconciliation between Tax Expense and the Product of Accounting Profit
Profit Before Tax		
Exempted Profits		
Accounting Profit Liable to Income Tax		
Income Tax on Accounting Profit at Applicable Rates		
Over Provision of Previous Year - Income Tax		
Aggregate Disallowed Expenses		
Benefits due to Utilisation of Tax Losses		
Economic Service Charge		
Social Responsibility Levy at the Rate of 1.5% 		
Total Tax Expense		
Income Tax charged at
Standard Rate - CSE Listed Companies 35% 		
Concessionary Rate of 15% 		

420,151
(19,570)
400,581
140,203
(8,639)
48,053
(645)
8,763
3,542
191,277

268,345
(12,171)
256,174
89,661
(9,667)
45,964
(27)
(205)
3,005
128,731

469,539
(19,570)
449,969
156,082
(8,007)
37,934
3,524
189,533

402,175
(12,171)
(12,171)
132,568
(9,823)
33,221
3,004
158,970

236,575
1,543

196,874
1,213

225,350
1,543

196,874
1,213

		
Social Responsibility Levy at the Rate of 1.5% 		
Deferred Tax Charge reversal		
Over provision of tax		
Total Tax Expense		

238,118
3,542
(41,744)
(8,639)
191,277

198,087
3,005
(62,538)
(9,823)
128,731

226,893
3,524
(32,877)
(8,007)
189,533

198,087
3,004
(32,298)
(9,823)
158,970

25.2 Deferred Tax Expense
Deferred Tax arising from
Accelerated Depreciation for tax purposes 		
34,395
16,929
12,679
Returnable Containers 		
(35,262)
(33,285)
(35,262)
Retirement Benefits Liability 		
(12,668)
(7,315)
(10,294)
Benefit arising from Tax Losses 		
(28,209)
(38,868)
		
(41,744)
(62,539)
(32,877)
		
Deferred Tax Liabilities have been computed taking into consideration the revised average tax rates effective from 1 April 2009,
which is 33.43 %. (2008 - 34.7 %) for the Company and at 35% (2008 - 35%) for the Subsidiary Company.
25.3 Tax Losses Carried Forward
Tax Losses Brought Forward		
Loss during the period		
Adjustment to brought forward Tax Losses		
Utilisation of Tax Losses		
		

329,112
41,436
3,874
(1,843)
372,579

180,930
148,497
(237)
(78)
329,112

-

7,733
(33,285)
(6,746)
(32,298)

-
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Company

Group

For the year ended 31st March
In Rs. 000’s

Note

2010

2009

2010

2009

26.1 Basic Earnings Per Share
Profit for the Year		

228,874

139,614

280,006

243,205

Dividend on Preference Shares (Net of tax)		

(13)

(13)

(13)

(13)

Profit Attributable to Ordinary Equity Holders of the Company		

228,861

139,601

279,993

243,192

Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares
26.2
Basic Earnings Per Share		

21,600
10.60

21,600
6.46

21,600
12.96

21,600
11.26

26.2 Amount used as Denominator
Weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year		

21,600

21,600

21,600

21,600

86,400
86,400

21,600
21,600

86,400
86,400

21,600
21,600

26 EARNINGS PER SHARE

27 DIVIDEND PAID
27.1 Declared and Paid During the Year
First & Final Dividend - 2007/2008		
First & Final Dividend - 2008/2009		
Total Dividend		

The First and Final Dividend declared for this financial year has not been recognised as at the Balance Sheet date in compliance with SLAS 12
(Revised) - Events after the Balance Sheet Date.
27.2 Dividend Per Share - Paid		

4.00

1.00

4.00

1.00

28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
The Company carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business at commercial rates with the following related parties .There were no
other related party transactions other than the following.
Outstanding Balances at year end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash. Bad and Doubtful provision as at 31 March
2010 amounts to Rs. 10.7 million (2009 - Rs. 10.7 million).
Group
Company
Balance Outstanding
Balance Outstanding
As at 31st March		
2010
2009
2010
2009
In Rs. 000’s
28.1 Amounts due from related parties
Please refer Note 28.1 A for details
Ultimate parent		
Subsidiary		
Companies under common control		
Less : Provision for Elephant House Farms Ltd.		
		

99
12,904
13,003

302
14,237
14,539

11,322
6,591
(10,751)
7,162

14,211
7,464
(10,751)
10,924
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As at 31st March		
In Rs. 000’s
28.2 Amounts due to related parties
Please refer Note 28.1 B for details
Ultimate parent		
Subsidiary		
Companies under common control		
		

For the year ended 31st March		

Group
Balance Outstanding
2010
2009

12,193
98,688
110,881

23,009
85,305
108,314

Amounts (Paid)
/ Received
2010
2009

Company
Balance Outstanding
2010
2009

5,446
2,168
3,757
11,371

10,579
2,598
2,477
15,654

Amounts (Paid)
/ Received
2010
2009

28.3 Transactions with related parties
Ultimate Parent
Purchasing / (Sale of Goods)		
(Rendering) / Receiving of Services		
Interest received / (Paid)		

2,072
(77,462)
(5,343)

2,072
(80,017)
(7,485)

(38,231)
(1,340)

(40,786)
(3,483)

Subsidiaries
(Rendering) / Receiving of Services		
(Purchase) / Sale of Goods		

-

-

(4,935)
1,439

(4,826)
-

Companies under common control
(Purchasing) / Sale of Goods		
(Rendering) / Receiving of Services		
Interest received / (Paid)		
Rental income received / (Paid)		

(316,075)
(172,265)
(4,230)
6,875

(295,934)
(133,756)
(5,977)
(24,793)

6,965
(2,210)
2,759
6,875

6,453
8,250
2,129
6,462

Key Management Personnel
Companies controlled by KMP and close family members		

-

19,531

-

19,531

28.4 Compensation of Key Management Personnel
Short-Term Employee Benefits		

21,165

33,964

14,687

24,762

Total Compensation Paid to Key Management Personnel		

21,165

33,964

14,687

24,762

Key Management Personnel include members of the Board of Directors of the Company, the Subsidiary and the Ultimate Parent Company John
Keells Holdings PLC. Other than above there was no other compensation paid to Key Management Personnel.
28.5 Post Employment Benefit Plan
Contribution to Provident Fund
Ceylon Cold Stores Management Staff Provident Fund		
Ceylon Cold Stores Staff Provident Fund		
John Keells Limited Executive Staff Provident Fund		
Mackinnons Keells Financial Service Limited Provident Fund		

11,421
31,023
11,371
1,552

11,697
32,807
11,047
1,123

11,421
31,023
6,326
152

11,697
32,807
6,967
149
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Company

Group

As at 31st March		
In Rs. 000’s

2010

2009

2010

2009

28.1 A Ammounts Due from Related Parties
Ultimate parent
John Keells Holdings PLC		

99

302

-

-

Subsidiaries
Elephant House Farms Ltd		
Jaykay Marketing Services ( Pvt) Ltd		

-

-

10,751
571

10,751
3,460

Companies under common control
Asian Hotels & Properties PLC		
Ceylon Holiday Resort Ltd		
DHL Keells (Pvt) Ltd		
Habarana Lodge Ltd		
Habarana Walk Inn Ltd		
Infomate (Pvt) Ltd		
John Keells Logistics Pvt Ltd		
John Keells Office Automation (Pvt) Ltd		
John Keells PLC		
John Keells Properties (Pvt) Ltd		
Kandy Walk Inn Limited		
Keells Food Products PLC		
Keells Hotel Management Services (Pvt) Ltd		
Mack Air Ltd		
Mackinnon & Keells Financial Services Ltd		
Mackinnons Travels Pvt Ltd		
Nexus Network (Pvt) Ltd		
Trans Asia Hotels PLC		
Trinco Walk Inn Limited		
Union Assurance PLC		
Walkers Air Services (Pvt) Ltd		
Walkers Tours Ltd		
Less : Provision for Elephant House Farms Ltd		
		

1,183
147
186
42
97
70
60
59
1,122
48
4,612
251
3
511
3,110
134
1,125
32
112
13,003

987
40
178
48
17
13
50
25
64
3,087
39
6,061
30
228
486
1,582
106
5
1,017
62
112
14,539

651
147
42
85
15
42
4,603
249
511
134
112
(10,751)
7,162

304
37
37
17
50
38
6,049
228
486
106
112
(10,751)
10,924

28.1 B Amounts Due to Related Parties
Ultimate parent
John Keells Holdings PLC		

12,193

23,009

5,445

10,579

Subsidiary
Jaykay Marketinbg Services (Pvt) Ltd		

-

-

2,168

2,598

Companies under common control
Asian Hotels and Properties PLC			
Ceylon Holiday Resort Ltd		
1
DHL Keells (Pvt) Ltd		
59
Habarana Lodge Ltd		
7
Informate (Pvt) Ltd		
673
John Keells Logistics (Pvt)Ltd		
10,471
John Keells Logistic Lanka (Pvt) Ltd		
3,492
John Keells Office Automation (Pvt) Ltd		
58
John Keells PLC		
51

46
1,343
21,117
1,922
262
45

98
1
59
(356)
69
3,492
66
47

46
376
1,922
53
41
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Company

Group

As at 31st March		
In Rs. 000’s
28.1 B Amounts Due to Related Parties Contd.
John Keells Properties (Pvt) Ltd		
Kandy Walk Inn Ltd		
Keells Consultants Ltd		
Keells Food Products PLC		
Mackinnons Travels (Pvt) Ltd		
Nexus Network (Pvt) Ltd		
Union Assurance PLC		
Walkers Tours Ltd		
		

2010

2009

2010

2009

1,263
25
48
43,855
203
38,462
14
6
110,881

3,090
19
61
32,495
24,213
692
108,314

11
40
12
202
11
6
11,371

39
15,654

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
There were no material contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date.

30 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There were no significant capital commitments as at the Balance Sheet date other than the following.
Capital Expenditure approved by the Board of Directors as at Balance Sheet date amounts to Rs.265 million for Group ( 2009 - Nil ) and for
the Company is Rs 265 million ( 2009 - Nil)

31 POST Balance Sheet EVENTS
There have been no material events occurring after the Balance Sheet date that required adjustments to or disclosure in the Financial
Statements except as disclosed below.
As required by section 56(2) of thre Companies Act No. 7 0f 2007, the Board of Directors have confirmed that the Company satisfies the
Solvency test in accordance with Section 57 of the Companies Act No 7 of 2007, and has obtained a certificate from the Auditors, prior to
declaring a first and final dividend of Rs. 4.00 per share.

32 Risk Management
a) Credit risk
Exposure to Credit Risk
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables, amount due from related parties, short term loan to the related parties and Cash in hand
and cash at bank represents the maximum credit exposure to the Group. As at Balance Sheet date the Group has a provision for the bad and
doubtful debts amounting to Rs.34 million ( 2009 - Rs. 32 million).
b) Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on borrowings from Banks and loans from Related parties.
c) Currency Risk
Currency risk faced by the Group is minimal as the majority of purchases and sales are done in local currency.
d) Liquidity risk
The Group is having contractual maturities of financial liabilities which includes Trade and other payable, amount due to related parties, Bank
overdrafts, short term loans and current portion of Interest Bearing Borrowings including interest payments.
Maximum exposure to liquidity risk is restricted to the above.
e) Equity Risk
Equity price risk is minimal to the Company as the Company Investments are non quoted.
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Your Share in Detail
Ordinary Shareholding
Issued Share Capital

21,600,000 Ordinary Shares

Distribution of Shareholders
Shareholding Range

No. of
Shareholders

Less than or equal to 1,000
1,001
to
10,000
10,001
to
100,000
100,001 to
1,000,000
Over
1,000,000
			

1,139
403
76
3
2
1,623

31st March 2010
No. of
%
No. of
Shares Held		 Shareholders
280,690
1,386,520
1,642,877
918,874
17,371,039
21,600,000

1.30
6.42
7.61
4.25
80.42
100.00

31st March 2009
No. of
Shares Held

%

1,164
427
76
3
2
1,672

285,661
1,478,029
1,606,297
858,974
17,371,039
21,600,000

1.32
6.84
7.44
3.98
80.42
100.00

No. of
%
No. of
Shares Held		 Shareholders

No. of
Shares Held

%

3
1,620
1,623
1,497
126
1,623

17,381,649
4,218,351
21,600,000
20,275,963
1,324,037
21,600,000

80.47
19.53
100.00
93.87
6.13
100.00

3
1,669
1,672
1,545
127
1,672

17,381,649
4,218,351
21,600,000
20,323,094
1,276,906
21,600,000

80.47
19.53
100.00
94.09
5.91
100.00

3
7
1,613
1,623

17,381,649
12,550
4,205,801
21,600,000

80.47
0.06
19.47
100.00

3
7
1,662
1,672

17,381,649
12,550
4,205,801
21,600,000

80.47
0.06
19.47
100.00

Categories of Shareholders
No. of
Shareholders
John Keells Holdings PLC and
Subsidiaries
Others
Total
Sri-Lankan Residents
Non-Residents
Total
John Keells Holdings PLC and
Subsidiaries
Director’s and Spouses
Shareholders holding more than 10%
Public

Net Asset per Share

Market Price
Rs.
200

Rs.
140
120

150

100
80

100
60
40

50

20
0

06

07

08

09

10

0

06

07

08

09

10
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Your Share in Detail
* Percentage of shares held by the public as at 31st March, 2010 is 19.47%

Top 20 Shareholders
As at 31st March
		
		

No. of Shares
Held

2010
% of Issued
Capital

No. of Shares
Held

2009
% of Issued
Capital

John Keells Holdings PLC		
Whittal Boustead Ltd		
The Gilpin Fund Ltd		
Employees Provident Fund		
N. S Sethna		
Asha investments Ltd		
HSBC International Nominee Ltd -SSBT - Deustche Bank Nominees		
Life Insurance Corporation of India		
Sisira Investors Limited		
M. Radhakrishnan		
J. R. Printers		
L.Gulamhusein		
Waldock Mackenzie Ltd/Delmage Forsyth and Co (Shipping) Ltd		
Merrill J. Fernando & Sons (Pvt) Ltd		
Waldock Mackenzie Ltd/Delmage Forsyth and Co (Exports ) Ltd		
H. M. Mount (Decd)		
C. F. M. Wilson		
E. C. Rodrigo		
M V Theagarajah		
E L Blizard (Decd)		
Caesarean Investment Ltd		
The Child Protection Society Ceylon		
		

15,060,722
2,310,317
417,400
304,600
196,874
90,160
83,570
68,228
58,136
42,314
41,984
41,142
37,700
34,284
31,900
31,340
30,842
30,468
29,962
29,528
18,971,471

69.73
10.70
1.93
1.41
0.91
0.42
0.39
0.32
0.27
0.20
0.19
0.19
0.17
0.16
0.15
0.15
0.14
0.14
0.14
0.14
87.83

15,060,722
2,310,317
357,500
304,600
196,874
90,160
83,570
68,228
58,136
42,314
41,984
41,142
34,284
31,340
30,842
30,468
29,962
29,528
29,034
27,560
18,898,565

69.73
10.70
1.66
1.41
0.91
0.42
0.39
0.32
0.27
0.20
0.19
0.19
0.16
0.15
0.14
0.14
0.14
0.14
0.13
0.13
87.49

2010		

2009

SHARE PRICES - (Rs.)				
Beginning of the year		
69.50		
Highest for year		
185.00
(15.03.10)
Lowest for year		
68.00
(01.04.09)
As at 31st March		
172.00		

130.00
140.00
69.50
69.50

As at 31st March 		

Market Capitalisation
Rs. Mn
4,000

Shareholders Funds
Rs. Mn
3,000

3,500

2,500

3,000
2,000

2,500
2,000

1,500

1,500

1,000

1,000
500

500
0

06

07

08

09

10

0

06

07

08

09

10

(16.05.08)
(31.03.09)
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Decade at a Glance - Group
2010
Rs`000

2009
Rs`000

2008
Rs`000

Year ended 31st March
Trading Results
Gross Revenue
15,322,957 13,631,168 10,960,073
Profit from Operating
Activities
541,864
460,951
450,948
Profit before Taxation
420,151
268,345
269,358
Taxation
(191,277)
(128,731)
(93,432)
Profit after Taxation
228,874
139,614
175,926
Minority Interest		
Retained Earnings
Brought forward
422,902
304,902
198,110

2007
Rs`000

2006
Rs`000

2005
Rs`000

2004
Rs`000

2003
Rs`000

2002
Rs`000

2001
Rs`000

9,277,671

7,290,257

5,186,980

3,141,772

3,019,658

2,597,148

2,296,011

555,230
469,474
(192,490)
276,984
-

370,323
305,315
(104,256)
201,059
311

180,529
84,794
(101,159)
(16,365)
18,074

280,994
(464,477)
65,083
(399,394)
-

299,303
256,106
(64,514)
191,592
-

317,834
155,824
(88,180)
67,644
-

227,958
226,096
(55,480)
170,616
-

(49,678)

(251,020)

(251,603)

196,805

75,331

92,048

168,621

651,776

444,516

374,036

227,306

(49,650)

(249,894)

(202,589)

266,923

159,692

339,237

Transfer to General Reserve		

-

-

-

-

-

-

(39,000)

(29,761)

(125,000)

-

-

22,742

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(11,694)

-

(21,614)
-

(69,134)
-

(51,854)
(84)

(28)

10,582
(14)

(49,014)

(31,118)

(54,600)

(122,189)

565,362

422,902

304,902

198,110

(49,678)

(251,020)

(251,603)

196,805

75,331

92,048

Long Term loans
Deferred Liabilities

3,480,787
546,736
4,027,523
(595,948)
3,431,575
200,817
593,417

3,599,815
3,100
641,610
4,224,525
(679,546)
3,544,979
420,300
649,798

3,508,143
3,100
706,019
4,217,262
(682,367)
3,534,895
421,830
736,184

2,322,647
3,100
616,231
2,941,978
(350,684)
2,591,294
373,890
627,156

1,650,296
3,100
561,182
2,214,578
(272,390)
1,942,188
73,583
488,371

1,552,399
3,100
555,898
2,111,397
(280,317)
1,831,080
228,283
408,353

1,472,036
3,100
485,689
1,960,825
(277,101)
1,683,724
426,428

1,463,495
3,100
401,280
1,867,875
340,905
2,208,780
503,076

1,352,522
3,100
317,376
1,672,998
251,402
1,924,400
454,296

1,446,164
3,206
309,830
1,759,200
155,782
1,914,982
457,920

Net Assets

2,637,341

2,494,881

2,376,881

1,590,248

1,380,234

1,194,444

1,257,296

1,705,704

1,470,104

1,457,062

Represented by
Stated Capital

270,200

270,200

270,200

270,200

270,200

270,200

270,200

270,200

270,200

270,200

Capital Reserves

1,155,779

1,155,779

1,155,779

475,938

490,970

490,970

554,406

554,406

479,280

479,280

646,000

646,000

646,000

646,000

668,742

684,294

684,294

684,294

645,294

615,534

565,362
2,637,341

422,902
2,494,881

304,902
2,376,881

198,110
1,590,248

(49,678)
1,380,234

(251,020)
1,194,444

(251,604)
1,257,296

196,804
1,705,704

75,330
1,470,104

92,048
1,457,062

Transfer to/frm Distributable
Dividends Reserve		
Adjustment due to
change of Associate to		
Subsidiary Company		
Adjustment due to
impairment of PPE		
Dividends
(86,414)
Deffered Tax		
Retained Earnings
carried forward
As at 31 March
Balance Sheet
Fixed Assets
Investments
Non Current Assets
Net Current Assets/ Liabilities

Revenue Reserve
Retained Profits
Shareholder’s Funds
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Key Figures and Ratios
Ratios and other information - Group
Year ended 31st March
Dividend
per Share (Rs.) - Paid
Dividend Payout (%)
Net Asset
per Share (Rs.)
Market Value
per Share (Rs.)
Debt / Equity Ratio (%)
Interest
Cover (No.of Times)
Liquid Ratio
(No. of Times)
Earnings per Share (Rs.)
Price Earnings
Ratio (No. of Times)
Current Ratio
(No. of Times)
Return on
Total Assets (%)
Return on Equity (%)
Dividend Yield (%)
Earnings Yield (%)

2010

2009

2008

2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

4.00
37.76

1.00
15.48

3.20
39.30

2.40
18.72

0.80
0.01

-

2.40
(12.27)

1.60
16.24

2.72
80.72

5.66
71.62

122.10

115.50

110.04

73.62

63.90

55.30

58.21

78.97

68.06

67.45

172.00
36.98

69.50
59.62

130.00
68.78

152.00
81.77

154.00
49.64

120.00
66.23

117.00
56.48

102.00
7.67

56.50
13.08

41.00
6.28

4.45

2.39

2.48

6.47

5.70

2.26

5.28

75.56

26.33

122.42

0.35
10.60

0.35
6.46

0.37
8.14

0.51
12.82

0.42
9.32

0.46
(0.42)

0.56
(18.49)

1.45
8.87

1.26
3.13

1.00
7.90

16.23

10.76

15.96

11.86

16.52

N/A

N/A

11.50

18.05

5.19

0.79

0.76

0.74

0.83

0.79

0.76

0.72

1.96

1.54

1.41

3.56
8.68
2.33
6.16

2.22
5.73
1.44
9.29

3.27
8.87
2.46
6.27

7.07
17.42
1.58
8.43

6.50
15.64
1.55
6.05

(0.30)
0.14
0.60
0.35

(15.22)
(26.96)
2.05
(15.80)

7.73
12.06
1.57
8.70

2.79
4.62
4.81
5.54

7.64
11.91
13.80
19.27

Group Real Estate Portfolio
Owning Company and Location

Buildings
in (Sq. Ft)

Land in Acres
Freehold

Land in Acres
Leasehold

2010
Rs.’000

2009
Rs.’000

Properties in Colombo
Ceylon Cold Stores PLC
Slave Island Complex, Colombo 2

94,655

4.97

3.12

928,961

931,112

Properties Outside Colombo
Ceylon Cold Stores PLC
Kaduwela
Trincomalee

242,439
24,905

26.15
1.14

-

512,947
30,021

515,899
30,021

12,820
6,500

-

0.30
0.24

8,202
6,163

9,556
7,617

Jaykay Marketing Services (Pvt) Ltd
385, Negambo Road, Wattala
388, Galle Road, Mount Lavinia
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Glossary of Financial Terminology
Accrual Basis

Net Assets

Recording Revenues and Expenses in the period in which they
are earned or incurred regardless of whether cash is received or
disbursed in that period.

Total Assets - Current Liabilities - Long Term Liabilities - Minority
interest

Net Asset per Share
Contingent Liabilities
A condition or situation existing at the Balance Sheet date due to
past events, where the financial effect is not recognised because:
1. The obligation is crystallized by the occurrence or non occurrence
of one or more future events or,
2. A probable outflow of economic resources is not expected or,
3. It is unable to be measured with sufficient reliability.

Current Ratio
Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Debt / Equity Ratio

Net Assets divided by number of ordinary shares in issue at the end
of the period.

Net Debt
Debt - (Cash + Short Term Deposits)

Net Turnover per Employee
Net Turnover divided by average number of employees.

Price Earnings Ratio
Market Price of share as at year end divided by Earnings per Share

Debt as a percentage of Shareholders Funds

Quick Ratio

Dividends per Share - Paid

Cash + Short Term Investments + Trade and Other Receivables,
divided by Current Liabilities

Dividends Gross(Ordinary)paid divided by Number of Ordinary Shares
issued

Return on Assets

Dividend Cover

Profit After Tax divided by Average Total Assets

Earnings per share divided by dividend per share

Return on Equity

Dividend Payout Ratio

Consolidated Profit after Tax and Minority interest as a Percentage
of Average Shareholder’s Funds

Total Dividend as a percentage of Company profits

Dividend Yield
Dividend per Shares as a percentage of share price at the end of the
period.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
Consolidated profit after tax and Preference Dividends before
Extraordinary items divided by weighted average number of shares
in issue during the period.

Earnings Yield

Return on Capital Employed
Earnings before interest and tax as a % of average of share holders
funds + total debt

Shareholders’ Funds
Total of issued and fully paid share Capital, Capital Reserves and
Revenue Reserves

Total Assets
Fixed Assets + Investments + Non Current Assets + Current Assets

Earnings per Share as a percentage of Market Price per Share end of
the period

Total Debt

Effective Rate of Taxation

Total Debt / Total Assets

Income Tax including Differed tax over Profit before Tax

Interest Cover
Profit on Operating Activities over Finance Expenses.

Market Capitalization
Number of Shares in issue at the end of period multiplied by the
share price at end of period

Long Term Loans plus short Term Loans and Overdraft

Total Debt divided by Total Assets

Total Value Added
The difference between Gross revenue after adjusting for other
income minus, expenses and the cost of materials and services from
external sources
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Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the

113th

Annual General Meeting
of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC will be held at the
Human Resources Auditorium, of John Keells Holdings PLC.
No.130, Glennie Street, Colombo 2
on Tuesday, 29th June 2010 at 11.00 am.
The business to be brought before the meeting will be:


To read the Notice convening the meeting



To receive and consider the Annual Report of the Directors and the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31
March 2010 with the Report of the Auditors thereon.



To re-elect as Director Mr. Ajit Damon Gunewardene who retires by rotation in terms of Article 84 of the Articles
of Association of the Company.



To re-elect as Director, Mr Prasanna Sujeewa Jayawardena who retires by rotation in terms of Article 84 of the
Articles of Association of the Company.



To authorise the Directors to determine and make donations.



To appoint Messer’s Ernst and Young Chartered Accountants, as Auditors and to authorise the Directors to
determine their remuneration.



To consider any other business of which due notice has been given.

By Order of the Board
Keells Consultants Ltd.
Secretaries
Colombo
4th June 2010

Note
 A member unable to attend is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his/her place.
 A proxy need not be a member of the Company.
 A member wishing to vote by proxy at the meeting may use the proxy form enclosed
 To be valid, the completed proxy form must be lodged at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48
hours before the meeting.
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Form of Proxy
I/We ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... of
.................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. being a
a member/s of Ceylon Cold Stores PLC hereby appoint:
................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ of
........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... or failing him/her
Mr. Susantha Chaminda Ratnayake of Colombo
Mr. Ajit Damon Gunewardene of Colombo
Mr. James Ronnie Felitus Peiris of Colombo
Mr. Jitendra Romesh Gunaratne of Colombo
Mr. Albert Rasakantha Rasiah of Colombo
Mr. Prasanna Sujeewa Jayawardena of Colombo
Dr. Uditha Pilane Liyanage of Colombo

or failing him
or failing him
or failing him
or failing him
or failing him
or failing him

as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the 113th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 11.00 a.m on the
29th of June 2010 and at any adjournment thereof and at every poll which may be taken in consequence thereof.

Signed this ........................................................................ day of ........................................................................ Two Thousand and Ten

................................................................................................
Signature/s of shareholder/s

Nore:
INSTRUCTIONS TO COMPLETION OF THE FORM OF PROXY ARE SET OUT ON THE REVERSE HEREOF.
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Form of Proxy
INSTRUCTIONS AS TO COMPLETION OF PROXY
1.

Kindly complete the Form of Proxy by filling in legibly your full name and address and that of the Proxy holder. Please sign in the space
provided and fill in the date of signature.

2.

The instrument appointing a Proxy shall, in the case of an individual, be signed by the appointer or by his Attorney and in the case of
a Corporation must be executed under the Common Seal or in such other manner prescribed by its Articles of Association or other
Constitutional documents.

3.

If the Proxy Form is signed by an Attorney the relevant Power of Attorney or a notarially certified copy thereof, should also acCompany
the completed Form of Proxy if it has not already been registered with the Company.

4.

To be valid, the completed Form of Proxy should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 01, Justice Akbar Mawatha,
Colombo 2 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the meeting.
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Auditors

Ceylon Cold Stores PLC

KPMG Ford, Rhodes, Thornton & Company,
Chartered Accountants,
No. 32A, Sir Mohamed Macan Markar Mawatha,
P.O.Box 186,
Colombo 03
Sri Lanka

Legal Form
Public Limited Liability Company
Established in 1866 as Colombo Ice Company Limited
Name changed to Ceylon Cold Stores Limited in 1941
Quoted in the Colombo Stock Exchange in January 1970
Registered under Companies Act No.7 of 2007 on new Company
No. PQ4

Registered Office of the Company
No.1, Justice Akbar Mawatha
Colombo 2
Sri Lanka
Tel: 2328221 – 7
Telefax : 2447422
E-mail : coldstor@keells.com

Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC
Deuche Bank Ltd
Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd
National Development Bank PLC
Nations Trust Bank PLC
Standard Chartered Bank
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